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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting

Being responsible for overseeing the financial reporting processes undertaken by management, the
Board of Directors has the ultimate responsibility for ensuring that legislative requirements in
relation to financial reporting have adhered to when preparing the same. Accordingly, the
responsibility of the Board of Directors in relation to the financial statements of the State Mortgage
and Investment Bank is set out in this statement.

The Board of Directors of the Bank confirm that the Financial Statements of the Bank will reflect
a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at 31* December 2023, and the financial performance
of the Bank for the financial year then ended. The Board of Directors accepts responsibility for the
integrity and objectivity of the Financial Statements presented in this Annual Report.

Financial Statements
The Board of Directors of the Bank, having sufficient ipan_c-; ,
direct the organization, is required to control and ad rinist
Bank in terms of the provisions of the State Mortgage an

iteracy to understand, monitor and
.affairs and the business of the
vestment Bank Law No. 13 of 1975

nd presented in this Annual Report are
‘ .and are in conformity with the requirements of
" A Sri Lanka Accounting Standards® and Sri Lanka
ie and fair view of the financial position of the Bank
ance with the relevant statutory requirements.

Financial Reporting Standards that give a
at the end of each financial year in'¢

The Board of Directors accepts responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of the Financial
Statement presented in this Annual Report. The Directors confirm that in preparing these Financial
Statements;

1. The appropriate accounting policies have been selected, adopted and applied to prepare the
Financial Statements according to the existing financial reporting framework in a
consistent manner, material departures, if any, have been disclosed and explained;

2. All applicable accounting standards as relevant have been followed,;

3. Judgments and estimates have been made which are reasonable and prudent.

The bank has published quarterly audited financial statements, including key performance

indicators in the newspapers, in all three languages, within two months of the end of each period
and also published them on the bank’s website.
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The Board of Directors also approves the Interim Financial Statements prior to their release,
following a review and recommendation by the Board Audit Committee. The Board Audit
Committee report appears on Page 86 to 88 of this annual report. The Board of Directors ensures
that the Financial Statements comply with the prescribed format issued by the Central Bank for
Licensed Specialized Banks.

Going Concern

The Board of Directors of SMIB is of the view that the Bank has adequate resources to continue
in operation for the foreseeable future and to justify the application of the going concern basis in
preparing these Financial Statements in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards
(LKAS & SLFRS) laid down By the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and in
conformity with the generally accepted Accounting Principles and the Board has taken all
necessary measures to comply with the directives issued by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

Internal Controls and Risk Management

The Board of Directors of SMIB is responsible f
safeguard the assets of the Bank detect frauds and ot
effective and comprehensive system of internal fina
monitoring ifs effectiveness which includes the inter
considerable importance on maintaining a strong con
Bank’s assets and prevent fraud and mismanagem
The purpose of internal control is to-achieve an effective organization that achieves goals set by
the Board of Directors and singe this means to a reasonable extent ensure that the Bank’s business
y..that Taws and regulations are complied with and to
reliability of the financial reporting.

reasonable measures and care to
egularities and has also instituted an
ial controls, an effective system of
audit:and risk management and places
ironment to protect and safeguard the

i8 conducted appropriately at
provide reasonable assurance

The Internal Audit Department under the guidance of the Audit Committee monitors the
effectiveness of the system of internal controls and recommends modifications where necessary.
The Directors ensure that the Financial Statements are reviewed by them directly at their regular
meetings and also through the Board Audit Committee.

A report by the Directors on the Bank’s internal control mechanism is given on page page
of this Annual Report.

Compliance Report

The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief that all taxes payable by the
Bank and ali contributions and taxes payable on behalf of and in respect of employees of the Bank
and all other known statutory dues to the Government and the other relevant regulatory and
statutory authorities which were due and payable by the Bank as at the date of Statement of
Financial Position have been paid or where relevant provided for.
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Audit Report
The Auditor General is the Auditor of the Bank and issues the final opinion on the Financial
Statements of the Bank.

The Auditor General has been made available with all records of the Bank including the Financial
Statements by the Board of Directors and provided every opportunity to undertake the inspections
they considered appropriate all of which the Auditor General’s Department has examined and have
expressed the Auditor General’s opinion,

The responsibilities of the Auditor in relation to the Financial Statements are set out in the Report
of the Auditor General on page of this Annual Report.

Directors’ interests in contracts of significance
It has to be ensured that, no contracts of significance to
a director or former director of the Bank had a matertal it
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time du; 1

ich the Bank was a party and in which
est, whether directly or indirectly,
r.and with respect to the Board of
to which the bank was a party and in

Statutory payments
The Directors to the best of thei
relation to all relevant regulatory and statutory authorities which were due and payable by the Bank
as at the Statement of Financial Position date have been paid or where relevant, provided for. The
Directors are of the view that they have discharged their responsibilities as set out in this statement.

By Order of the Board,

Dilani Alahakoon
Secretary to the Board
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19.Report of the Auditor General
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STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

Note - 2023 2022
Rs
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 13 122,600,853 126,480,437
Piacements with Banks 14 2,923,132,097 13,002,272,044
Financial Assets - FVPL is 3,552,533,227 -
Financial Assets - AC

- Loans and Advances 16.1 38,725,208,636 39,267,237,754

- Debt and Other Instruments 17 12,162,743,730 2,574,993,439
Financial Assets - FVOCT 18 5,379,078 5,379,078
Property, Plant and Equipment 19 171,651,164 78,212,808
Right-of-use Assets 33.1 159,250,451 201,736,713
Deferred Tax Assets 20 1,081,045,899 632,156,451
Other Assets 21 603,273,206 1,076,476,258
Total Assets 59,506,818,341 56,964,944,983
Liabilities
Due to Banks 22 2,732,792 23,380,935
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

- Due o Depositors 23 52,138.134,453 49,139,971,357

- Due to Debt Securities Holders - -

- Due to Other Borrowers 23 181,630,080 278,050,561
Employee Benefit Liability 24 597.674,223 521,826,703
Other Liabilities 25 677,508,033 527,230,721
Tofal Liabilities 53,597,679,580 50,490,460,277
Equity
Stated Capital/Assigned Capital 26 889,812,899 889,812,899
Statatory Reserve Fund 27 306,650,839 306,650,338
Retained Earnings 28 3,634‘866,019 4,200,211,965
Other Rescrves 20 1,077,809,004 1,077,809,004
Total Equity 5,909,138,761 6,474,484,706
Total Equity and Liabilities 59,506,818,341 56,964,944,983

Certification;

These Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the State Morigage and Investment Bank as
at 31 December 2023 and its profit for the year then ended.

<= ﬁ.’fﬂf/z.
e

Act. Deputy General Manager - Finance

The Board of Directors is responsible for the prcparatién and presentation of these Financial Statements.
Approved and Signed for and on behalf of the board, '

Mr.8. KA. Galappatthi

Mr.[.T. Asuramanna
Director ' General Manager / CEO

29.01.2023
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STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK

INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Note 2023 2022
Rs Rs

Interest Income 4 9,322,383,097 7,401,968,299
Interest Expenses 4 (8,728,335,334) {5,462,981,408)
Net Interest Income 4 594,047,763 1,938,986,892
Fee and Commission Income 5 96,293,245 91,724,320
Fee and Commission Expenses - -
Net Fee and Commission Income 5 96,293,245 91,724,320
Net Fair Value Gains/(Losses) from FA at FVPL 6 157,533,227 (2,134,408)
Net Other Operating Income ’ 24,758,246 25,569,713
Total Operating Income 872,632,481 2,054,146,517
Impairment Charges r40,722,270)- {365,747,028)
Net Operating Income 431,910,211 1,688,399,489
Personnel Expenses (1,013,434,215) (1,089,955,263)
Depreciation and amortization expenses (100,077,518) (96,575,584)
Other Expenses {(355,824,435) (353,428,278)
Operating profit/(loss) befor. (1,037,425,957) 148,440,304
Value Added Tax (VAT)on F 34 (5,125,869) (231,066,646)
Social Security Levy (SSCL) - (6,378,836)
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (1,042,551,826) (89,005,118)
Income tax expenses 11 494,390,132 290,803,108
Profit/(Loss) for the Year (548,161,694) 201,797,990
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STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Profit/(Loss) for the Year

Items that will be reclassified to income statement
Gains and Losses on Re-Measuring Financial Assets
Items that will not be reclassified to income statement
Re-measurement of post-employment benefit obligations

Deferred Tax effect on Actuarial Gains Losses on defined benefit obli

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

129

2023
Rs

2022
Rs

{548,161,6594)

201,797,990

(24,548,931) (45,905,377)
7,364,679 13,771,613
(565,345,946) 169,664,226
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK

Assig'ned Statutory Capital Reserve General Im,lreixﬂflity Retai.ned Total

Capital Reserve Reserve Fund Earnings
Balance as at 31.12.2021 889,812,899 296,560,939 393,498,004 683,280,000 1,031,000 4,019,389,735 6,283,572,57
Prior Period Adjustments 21,247,904 21,247,940
Net Profit for the Year 201,797,990 201,797,99
Other Comprehensive Income (32,133,764} (32,133,76
Transfer During the Year 10,089,899 (10,089,899} -
Transfer to Consolidated Fund - -
Balance as at 31.12.2022 889,812,899 306,650,838 393,498,004 683,280,000 1,031,600 4,200,211,965 6,474,484,70
Prior Period Adjustments -
Net Profit for the Year (548,161,694) (548,161,695
Other Comprehensive Income (17,184,252) (17,184,25
Transfer Puring the Year - - -
Transfer to Consolidated Fund - -
Balance as af 31,12,2023 889,812,899 306,650,838 393,498& 1,031,600 3,634,866,019 5,909,138,76
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
STATE MORTGAGE & INVESTMENT BANK

From 01/01/2023 to
31/12/2023

Rs.

From 01/01/2022 to
31/12/2022

Rs.

Cash flows from operating activities

Interest Received

Interest Payments

Net commission receipts

Payments to Employees

VAT, DLR & NBT ,ESC on financial services
Receipls from Other Operating Activities
Payments on Other Operating Activities

9,112,741,514

6,532,818,744

Operating profit before changes in Operating Assets & Liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets
Financial assets at amortised cost - loans & advances
Other Assets

Increase/(Decrease) in Operating Liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost - due to depositors
Financial liabilities at amoitised cost - due to other borr:
Other liabilities

Income Taxes Paid

Net Cash from Operating Aél

Cash flows from investing activities
Dividend Received -
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of Property ,Plant & Equipment

Net Proceeds from the sale and maturity of financial investiments

(8,081,564,508) (3,983,524,366)
96,297,745 110,156,617
(1,019,412,763) (1,139,105,522)
(44,874,583} (224,608,218)
5,993,126 3,852,616
(334,860,181) (393,178,818)
(265,679,650 906,411,053
54,064,440 (1,413,593,730)
421,629,548 (259,037,405)
475,693,988 (1,672,631,135)
2,993,435,676 1,996,748,599
(96,420,431) (90,186,677
144,660,383 (56,713,935)
3,041,675,579 1,849,847,988
3,251,689,916 1,083,627,905
(78,507,801) (85,810,622)
3,173,182,115 997,817,283
18,765,120 21,324,000
554,282 554,282
(114,589,387) (40,389,658)

(3,001,143,570)

(1,004,675,159)

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of subordinated debt
Payments to Consolidated Fund

Net cash from financing activates

Net increase/{decrease) in cash & cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Short Term Funds
Borrowings from Banks (0OD)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

(3,156,413,556) (1,023,186,536)
16,768,559 (25,369,253)
103,099,502 128,468,755
119,868,061 103,099,502
122,600,853 126,480,437
(2,732,792) (23,380,935)
119,868,062 103,099,502
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STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

Corporate Information

General

The State Mortgage & Investment Bank was inaugurated as the Ceylon State Mortgage
Bank (CSMB) on 6" December 1931 by Ordinance No. 16 of 1931. State Mortgage &
Investment Bank formed by the State Mortgage & Investment Bank Law No. 13 of
1975, amalgamating the Ceylon State Mortgage Bank and the Agricultural and
Industrial Credit Corporation, established in 1943. The Bank commenced its operation
on 1% January 1979. The Bank was recognized as a Licensed Specialized Bank and the
license was issued by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka on 27" April 1998 in terms of the
Banking Act No. 30 of 1988,

ensibility for the preparation and presentation of

provisions of the State Mortgage & Investment

Bank Law No . spf 1975, Banking Act No. 30 of 1988 and its amendments and Sri

Lanka Accounting S gda}éis (SLFRS and LKAS).

Date of Authorization
These Audited Financial Statements of the Bank for the year ended 31st December
2023 were authorized for issue in accordance with the approval given by the Board of

Directors of the Bank at the meeting,

The staff strength of the Bank as at December 31, 2023 was 354 (387 as at December
31, 2022)
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STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.1.3

Accounting Policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently in all

periods when  presenting the Financial Statements, unless otherwise indicated.
Basis of Preparation

Statements of compliance

These Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 were prepared and
presented in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS and LKAS}) laid
down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA Sri Lanka) and are
in compliance with the information required by the Banking Act No. 30 of 1988 and
subsequent amendments thereto. These Financial Statements, except for the

information in cash flow have been prepared following the accrual basis of accounting.

Statements and the disclosures made

ts preseribed by the Central Bank of Sri

The formats used in the preparation of Fz

therein also comply with the specified fo

ication of Annual Audited Financial

the recognised amountsiand there is an intention settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liability simultancously. Income and expenses are not offset in the
income statcment unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or

interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Bank.

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements.
ftems of dissimilar nature or functions is presented separately unless they are
immaterial as permitted by the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard ~LKAS 01 on

‘Presentation of Financial Statements

Significant accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions
In the process of applying the Bank's accounting policies, management has exercised
judgement and estimates in determining the amounts recognised in the financial

statements. The key significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
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STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

21.3.1

2.1.3.2

2.1.3.3

involving uncertainty are discussed below, whereas the  respective carrying amounts

of such assets and liabilities are given in related Notes.

Classification of financial assets and liabilities

As per SLFRS 9, the significant accounting policies of the bank provides scope for
financial assets to be classified and measured into different categories, namely, at
amortised cost, Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) and Fair
Value Through Profit or Loss (FVPL) based on the following criteria; The entity’s

business model for managing the financial assets as set

Fair value of financial instruments
Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
Statement of Financial Position cannot be derived from active markets, they are
thati

bservable market data where possible.

lude the use of mathematical models.

determined using the valuation techniqu

The inputs to these models are derived fro

Impairment losses on financial

required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when

determining the impairment loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about a
number of factors and hence actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the
impairment allowance made. The individual impairment provision applies to financial
assets evaluated individually for impairment and is based on Management’s best
estimate of the present value of the future cash flows that are expected to be received.
In estimating these cash flows, Management makes judgements about a borrower’s
financial situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral. Each
impaired asset is assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy and estimate of cash
flows considered recoverable. A collective impairment provision is established for
homogeneous leans and advances that are not considered individually significant; and
groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be

individually impaired.
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STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

214

2.1.5

As per SLFRS 9, Expected Credit Loss (ECL) calculations are outputs of complex
models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable
inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered
accounting judgements and estimates include
o Criteria for qualitatively assessing whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and if so allowances for financial assets measured on a Life Time
Expected Credit Loss (LTECL) basis
e The scgmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a
collective basis
¢ Development of ECL models, including the various statistical formulas and the
choice of inputs
¢ Determination of associations between macro-economic inputs, such as GDP

growth, inflation

o Interest rates, exchange rates a
of Default (PDs)
Exposure at Default (EAD)

— LKAS I on “Presentition of Financial Statements” (LKAS 1).

Basis of measurement
Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following material items in the Statement of Financial Position, which are measured

at fair value.

L Financial assets measured at fair value though other comprehensive income
il. Financial assets and liabilities recognised through profit or loss

Hi. Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
iv. Liability for employee defined benefits obligations are recognised at the

present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of the plan

assets,
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STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.1.6

2.1.7

2.1.8

2.2

221

Geing Concern

The Bank’s management has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going
concern and is satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable tuture. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt upon the Bank’s ability {o continue as a going concern.
Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.
In making this assessment, the Management has considered the potential downsides
that the COVID-19 pandemic could bring to the business operations of the bank.
Accordingly, the Management satisfied itself that the going concern basis is

appropriate,

Materiality and aggregation

Each material class of similar items are presented separately in the Financial

Statements, Iems of dissimilar nature or functions-are presented separately unless they
are immaterial as permitted by the Sri

“Presentation of Financial Statement.

Comparative information
Comparative information in
is disclosed in ot
enhance the :érstanding of:the clirrent period’s Financial Statements and to enhance
inter period .c'o nparability. The comparative information is reclassified where

necessary for the betf@r..p_iéééntation and to conform to the current year’s presentation.

Significant accounting policies — Recognitien of income and expenses for

financial instrument

Interest Inceme and Expenses
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Bank and the revenue can be reliably measured. Details of “income and

expenses” are given in Notes 03 & 4

The Effective Interest Rate Method

The interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (BIR) methed for all
financial instruments measured at amortised cost, financial instruments designated at
FVPL. Interest income on interest bearing financial assets measured at FVOCI under

SLFRS 9, similarly to interest bearing financial assets classified as available-for-sale
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STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

222

223

224

225

or held to maturity under LKAS 39 are also recorded by using the EIR method. The
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by considering
any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The Bank recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best
estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it
recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and
other characteristics of the product life ¢cycle (including prepayments, penalty interest
and charges).

If expectations regarding the cash flows on thi financial asset are revised for reasons

established. Note number 7.

Net Trading Income

Results arising from trading activities include all realised gains or losses from
investment in equities and fixed income sccurities classified as Financial Assets - At
Fair Value through Profit or Loss and unrealised gains and losses due to changes in fair

value of such instruments.

Other Income

Other income is recognized on an accrual basis. Note Number 7

Other Expenses
All other expenses have been recognized in the Financial Statements as they are
incurred in the period to which they relate. All expenditure incurred in the operation of

the business and in maintaining the capital assets in a state of efficiency has been
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STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.2.6

2.3

231

charged to revenue in arriving at the Bank’s profit for the year. Details of the other

expenses are given in the note number 10,

SLFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

SLFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much
and when revenue is recognised. New qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requiremerits aim to enable financial statements users to understand the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers. Entities will apply five step model to determine when to recognise revemue
and at what amount. The model specified that revenue is recognised when or as an
entity transfers control of goods and services to a customer at the amount to which the
entity expects to be entitled. Depending on whether certain criteria are met, revenue is

recognised.

Tax Expenses

laws, at the titae of the preparation of these financial statements.

The Bank recognizét"i_'f"g:ss 15 and liabilities for current, deferred and other taxes based
on cstimates of whethéf additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income and deferred tax amounts in the period in which the

determination is made,

IFRIC 23 — Uncertainty over income fax treatment

The interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments
invelve uncertainty that affects the application of LKAS 12 “Income Taxes”. It does
not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of LKAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated within certain tax
treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses the following:

o  Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately
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STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

232

2.3.3

e The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by
taxation authorities

e How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates

e How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances The Bank
determines whether to consider each uncertain fax treatment separately or
together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments and uses the approach

that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty

The Bank applies significant judgement in identifying uncertainties over income tax
treatments. Since the Bank operates in a complex environment, it assessed Bank the
interpretation had an impact on its Financial Statements. Upon adoption of the

inferpretation, the Bank considered whether it has any uncertain tax positions. The tax

filings of the Bank in different jurisdictions taxation authorities may challenge those

tax treatments. The Bank determined, bgi_'s':ed is tax compliance, that it is probable

that its tax treatments will be statements ofithe accepted by the taxation authorities. The

A_pcial Statements of the Bank. Except

interpretation did not have an impaction the F

‘has consistently applied the accounting

Corporate Income Tax rate was revised from 24% to 30% with effect from October 01,

2022.

Details of current income tax expenses are given in the note number 11

Deferred Tax Assels

Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Judgement is required to determine the amount of deferied tax asscts that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits, together

with future tax-planning strategies.
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STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

2,34

2.3.5

2.3.6

2.3.7

238

Details of deferred tax disclosed in the note number 20

Value Added Tax on Financial Services (VAT)

VAT on financial services is calculated in accordance with Section 25A of Value
Added Tax Act No. 14 of 2002 and subsequent amendments thereto. VAT on financial
services is payable at 18% on operating profit before value added tax and nation
building tax on financial services adjusted for emoluments of employees and economic

depreciation.

Details of VAT liability is disclosed in the note number 34.

Social Security Contribution Levy (SSCL) on Financial Services
In accordance with Social Security Contribution Levy (SSCL) Act No. 25 of 2022, the

Bank calculated and paid SSCL on financjal serviees at 2.5% of the value addition used

No. 2 of 2020 dated 12 October 202
2020,

, DRI was abolished with effect from 1 January

Economic Service Charge (ESC)

As per provisions of the Economic Service Charge (ESC) Act No.13 of 2006 and
amendments thereafter, ESC is payable at 0.5% on Bank’s liable turnover and is
deductible from income tax payable. As per Economic Service Charge (Amendment)
Act No. 4 of 2020 dated 12 October 2020, ESC was abolished with effect from 1
January 2020.

Crop Insurance Levy (CIL})
As per the provisions of the Finance Act No. 12 of 2013, the CIL was introduced with
effect from 1 April 2013 and is payable 1% of the profit after tax to the National

Insurance Trust Fund Board.
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STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.4

2.4.1

Significant accounting policies — Recognition of assets and liabilities

Employee Benefit Liability- Gratuity

All the employecs of the Bank are eligible for gratuity under the Payment of Gratuity
Act No. 12 of 1983, Employees who have resigned or whose services are terminated
other than by retirement are eligible to receive the terminal gratuity under the Payment
of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983 at the rate of one half of the Gross Salary applicable to
the last month of the financial year in which the employment is terminated or resigned,
for each year of completed service, for those who have served in excess of 5 years. The
Bank measures the present value of the promised retirement benefits of gratuity which

is a defined benefit plan using the actuarial valuation method.

Normal and Early Retirement
A participant is eligible for Normal retirementiatage 55 provided that he/she has 3
years of service. All participants are eli xtensions up to the attainment of age

60.

Interest Cost

Funding Arrangements

The Gratuity liabi

no éxternally funded.

Actuarial Vaiuation

The cost of the defined benefit plan gratuity is determined using an actuarial valuation,
Actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about inter-alia discount rates, future
salary increases, remaining working life of employees and mortality rates. Due to the
fong-term nature of these obligations, such estimates are subject to significant

uncertainty. The assumptions used are as follows.

2023 2022
Interest Rate 13.00% 18.00%
Rate of Annual Salary Increase 10% 10%
Retirement Age 55-60 years 55-60 years

The employment benefit obligation of gratuity provision is given in Note number 24.
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Employee Benefit Liability - Medical Benefit

Details of Actuarial Valuation on medical benefit is disclosed in the note number 21
Permanent employees and their families and retirees of State Mortgage & Investment
Bank are eligible for medical reimbursement provided that they have adopted to
participate in the Scheme and have paid their membership dues. Family members of a
retired member is only eligible for benefits under special treatment (either any one of

retired member or his/her family member is eligible),

The cost of the defined benefit plan medical benefit is determined vsing an actuarial
valuation. Actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about inter-alia discount
rates, medical inflation and mortality rates. Due to the long term nature of these
obligations, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

The assumptions used are as follows.

2023 2022
Discount Rate 13% 18%
Medical Expense Escalation 12% 12%

Participant Data (Actives) census informa 31.12.2023 31.12.2022

Recognition of-Actuarial-Losses./ Gains - Actuarial losses / gains are recognized

Expected return on assets is zero as the plan is not pre

Interest Cost - Interest Cost is the time value of Present  Value of the Defined Benefit
Obligation (PYDBO) and the Current Service Cost (CSC).

Funding Arrangements - The Medical Benefit Scheme is not externally funded

Defined Contribution Plan

The Bank also operates a defined contribution plan, The contribution payable to a
defined contribution plan is in proportion to the services rendered to the Bank by the
employees and is recorded as an expense under ‘Personnel expenses’. Unpaid
contributions are recorded as a liability. The Bank contributes to the following

schemes.
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2.4.4

Employees’ Provident Fund
The Bank and employees contribute 15% and 10% respectively of the employee’s
monthly gross salary (excluding overtime) to the Provident Fund. The Bank’s

Provident Fund is an approved fund under the Employees’ Provident Fund Act.

Employees’ Trust Fund

The Bank coniributes 3% of the employee’s monthly gross salary excluding overtime
to the Employees’ Trust Fund maintained by the Employees Trust Fund Board. The
employees will be eligible for gratuity under the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of
1983.

Leases
In these financial statements, the Bank has.:,-.ap" ed SLFRS 16 Leases, with effect from

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019; forthe first time. The Bank has adopted

as a right-of-u

is availahle for us ank according to SLFRS 16 Leases.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis.

Leasc liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

. Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
Incentives receivable

. Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measurcd
using the index or rate as at the commencement date

) Amounts expected 1o be payable by the group under residual value guarantees

. The exercise price of a purchase option if the group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option _

. Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the

group exercising that option.

143




Unaudited

STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

2441

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the group,

the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each

period.

Identifying a lease
A contract is a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Hence, at inception of a

contract, Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease by considering

following aspects. Availability of identifiedasset, right to control the use of the

. The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

* Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received
L Any initial direct costs

L] Restoration costs,

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life

and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straighi-line basis as an expense in profit or loss, Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Details of the cash and short-term funds

are given in Note 33 to the Financial Statements-
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and short-term funds include cash in hand, balances with banks, placements with
banks and money at call and at short notice. Details of the cash and short-term funds

are given in Note 13 to the Financial Statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of Property plant and equipment are given in the note number 16 Property, plant
and equipment is stated at cost or valuation excluding the costs of day—to—day
servicing, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value,
Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the depreciation

period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Useful Life of the Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

The Bank reviews the residual values, _:usef: lives and methods of depreciation of

Property, Plant and Equipment at each “iport

date. Judgement of the Management

day servicing.

Basis of Measurement
The property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation,

which is provided for on the basis specified as below.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of
property and equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives and
depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use.

The estimated useful lives are as follows
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Category of Asset Rate of Depreciation
Motor Vchicles 25.00% p.a.
Furniture and Fittings 12.50% p.a.
Office Equipment 12.50% p.a.
Computers 25.00% p.a.
Others 12.50% p.a.

The cost of alterations and modifications made to extension office buildings have

been amortised over 4 years or initial lease period, whichever is less.

Subsequent Cost
The cost of replacing part of an item of Property, Plant & Equipment is recognised in
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits

embodied within that part will flow into the Bankand its cost can be reliably measured.

Restoration Cost

Expenditure incurred on repairs or of Property, Plant & Equipment in

order fo restore or maintain fu ic benefits is charged to the Income

Statement as incurred

al nature directly incurred in the construction of building,
major plant and 1nach:i_p_l_fc_,1jy‘zind system development, awaiting capitalisation. These are

stated in the Statement of Financial Position at cost.

De-recognition

Property, Plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is recognised in ‘Other operating income' in the income statement

in the year the asset is derecognised. Details are disclosed in the note number 19

Intangible Assets
The Bank’s other intangible assets include the value of computer software. An

intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is
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probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow

to the Bank.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated

amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at Ieast at each financial year—end. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method,

as appropriate, and they are treated as ‘changes in accounting estimates. The

amortisation expense on intangible assets-with finite lives is recognised in the income

statement in the expense category consistent*with the nction of the intangible asset.

Useful Life Amortisation Method
4 Years Straight line method

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Bank cstimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generating Unit (CGU)’s fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the camrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written

down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the cstimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre—tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific fo the asset. In determining fair value less costs

to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
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2.4.10

24.11

2.4.11.1.

valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other

available fair value indicators.

Financial Guarantees

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank gives financial guarantees. Financial
guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements (within “other liabilities’)
at fair value, being the premium received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Bank’s
liability under each guaraniee is measured at the higher of the amount initially
recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in the income statement, and the
best estimate of expenditure required (o settle any financial obligation arising as a result

of the guarantee.

Any increase in the liability relating to financial guarantees is recorded in the income

sreceived is recognised in the income

statement in ‘Credit loss expense’. The premi

statement in ‘Nef fees and commission ii straight [ine basis over the life of

the guarantee.

Provisions

constructive)

embodying

Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition

Date of Recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and advances to customers
and balances due to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date
that the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This
includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when funds are
transferred to the customers’ accounts. The Bank recognises balances due to customers

when funds are transferred to the Bank.
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2.4.11.3

24.11.4

2.4.12
2.4.12.1

Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their
contractual terms and the business model for managing the instruments. Financial
instruments are initially measured at their fair value, except in the case of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at FVPL, transaction costs are added to, or
subtracted from, this amount. Trade receivables are measured at the transaction price.
When the fair value of financial instruments at initial recognition differs from the

transaction price, the Bank accounts for the Day | profit or loss, as described below.

Day 1 Profit or Loss
When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination
and the fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in

market transactions, the Bank recognises the difference between the transaction price

and fair value in net trading income. In those cases where fair value is based on models

. FVPL

Before 1 January 2018, the Bank classified its financial assets as loans and receivables

(amortised cost), FVPL, available-for-sale or held-to-maturity (amortised cost).
Financial liabilities, other than loan commitments and financial guarantees, are

measured at amortised cost.

Financial Assets and Liabilities

Due from Banks, Loans and Advances to Customers, Financial Investments at
Amortised Cost

From 1 January 2018, the Bank only measures Due from banks, Loans and advances
to customers and other financial investments at amortised cost if both of the following

conditions are met
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¢ The financial asset is held within a business modei with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flow.

» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount

outstanding.
The details of these conditions are outlined below.

Business Model Assessment

The Bank defermines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages
groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective. The Bank's business model
is not assessed on an instrament-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated

portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

* How the performance of the business modeland the financial assets held within that
business model are evaluated and reporte tity's key management personnel

¢ The risks that affect the performan the business model (and the financial assets

held within that business model); rticwlar, the way those risks are managed

Bank’s assessment

The business model as.sessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without
taking 'worst casc' or 'stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial
recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Bank's original expectations,
the Bank does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in
that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing newly

originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward,

The SPPI Test

As a second step of ifs classification process the Bank assesses the contractual cash
flow terms of financial instrument to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.
‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
at initial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example,

if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/discount).
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The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the
consideration for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI
assessment, the Bank applies judgement and considers relevant factors such as the
currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the

interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimise exposure to risks
or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending
arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is

required to be measured at FVPL.

Debt Instruments at FVOCI

The Bank applies the new category under. SEFRS9 of debt instruments measured at

s.model, the objective of which is

cash flows and selling financial assets

mprise assets that had previously been classified as

for-sale under LKAS 39,

FVOCI debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising due to changes in fair value recognised in OCI. Where the Bank holds more
than one investment in the same security, they are deemed to be disposed of on a first—
in first-out LKASs. On de-recognition, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in OCI are reclassified from OCI to profit or loss, Bank does not hold debt
instrument measured at FVOCI for the year ended 2022.

Equity Instruments at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Bank occasionally elects to classify irrevocably some of
its equity investments as equity instruments at FVOCI when they meet the definition
of definition of Equity under LK AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading, Such classification is determined on an instrument-by instrurment

basis,
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Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit. Dividends
are recognised in profit or loss as other operating income when the right of the payment
has been established, except when the Bank benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCL
Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment. Bank hold
unquoted equity instrument of Fitch rating company and Credit information Burean for

the year ended 2002. Note Number 18.

Debt Issued and Other Borrewed Funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrewed funds are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking infto account any
discount or premiumn on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. A

compound financial instrument which contains both a liability and an equity

component is separated at the issue date

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The designati minates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment

that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or

recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis.

. The liabilities (and assets until 1 Jannary 2018 under LKAS 39} are part of a
group of financial liabilities {or financial assets, or both under LKAS 39),
which arc managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in

accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded in the statement of
Financial Position at fair value, Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss
with the exception of movements in fair value of liabilities designated at FVPL due to
changes in the Bank’s own credit risk. Such changes in fair value are recorded in the

Own credit reserve through OCI and do not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest
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earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVPL is accrued in interest income or
interest expense, respectively, using the BIR, considering any discount/ premiwm and
qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned on
assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVPL is recorded using contractual
interest rate, Dividend income from equity instruments measured at FVPL is recorded
in profit or loss as other operating income when the right to the payment has been

established. Unit trust hold as at 31 December, 2023 was measured at FVPL.

Reclassification of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Bank does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition,
apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Bank acquires, disposes of, or
terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified. The Bank did not

reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilities in 2022 & 2023.

ition of Terms and Conditions

s-a:loan to a customer, when the terms
exient that, substantially, it becomes a

de-recognition gain or foss, to the extent

When assessing whether or not to derecognise a loan to a customer, amongst

others, the Bank considers the following factors:

. Change in currency of the loan

. Introduction of an equity feature

) Change in counterparty

) If the modification is such that the instrument would no longer meet the SPPI
criterion

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the
maodification does not result in de-recognition. Based on the change in cash flows
discounted at the original EIR, the Bank records a modification gain or loss, to the

extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.
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De-recognition Other than for Substantial Modification
Financial Assets
A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derccognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset have expired. The Bank also derecognises the financial asset if it has
both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition. The
Bank has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:
. The Bank has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset
or
. It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-

through’ arrangement

Pass-through arrangements are transactionswhereby the Bank retains the contractual

-one or more entities (the ‘eventual

wditions are met:

. The Bank catinof-sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the

eventual recipiént.
° The Bank has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual

recipients without material delay.

In addition, the Bank is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments
in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the period between the
collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for de recognition if either:

. The Bank has transferred substantially alf the risks and rewards of the asset
or
. The Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and

rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset
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The Bank considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the
practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to
exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the

transfer.

When the Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards and has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only
to the extent of the Bank’s continuing involvement, in which case, the Bank also
recognises an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are

measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Bank has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum

amount of consideration the Bank could ired to pay.

If continuing involvement takes the form'of*d ;ittén'-orifi)'urchased option {or both) on

the transferred asset, the continuing ifivo ementiis measured at the value the Bank

would be required to pay upon, repurchase. In:the case of a written put option on an

Financial liabilitie

A financial Hability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the

consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Provision for possible impairment losses is made on the basis of a continuous review
of all loans and advances to customers in accordance with the Sri Lanka Financial
Reporting Standard (SLFRS) No. 09 on ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and

measurement in the Financial Statements of the Banks. The following valuation
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2.4.12.10.2.1

techniques were used to calculate fair value of loans as it is necessary which are as
follows. Details of the impairment of the financial assets are disclosed in the note

number 16 &17

Individual Impairment Method

i Individual Impairment is made for the loans excluding cash back loans
including all loans aver Rs 5 Mn or 0.1% of the capital base is considered as
individually significant. Facilities for individual impairment test shall be

selected based on availability of objective evidence of impairment.

ii. Individually significant assessment and not impaired individually
Loans which are individually significant but not impaired will be assessed
collectively for impairment either under Stage 1 or Stage 2 based on the criteria
whether there has been significant aredit deterioration since origination. In

establishing significant credit

individual impairment followin

dssuer or the borrower, it is becoming

enter bankruptcy or other financial

doubtful, s gmﬁcant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the

same borrower.

Collective Impairment Method

Collective impairment provisions for possible loan losses are made in accordance with
the Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Standard No. 09 on ‘Financial Instruments:
Recognition and measurement in the Financial Statements of the Bank. The Bank used
to make the Collective impairment provision according to ECL principle. Where the

Individual impairment is not material.

Overview of the ECL Principles
The adoption of SLFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Bank’s loan loss impairment
method by replacing LXAS 39’s incurred loss approach with a forward-looking ECL

approach. From I January 2018, the Bank has been recording the allowance for
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expected credit losses for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVPL,
together with loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, in this section all
referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment

under SLFRS 9.

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date. Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on either an individual basis
or a collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial
instruments. The Bank’s policy for grouping financial assets measured on a collective

basis.

The Bank has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each

reporting period, of whether a financial Thstrument’s credit risk has increased

Stage 2 When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the Bank records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2
loans also imclude facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the
loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3 Loans considered credit-impaired {as outlined in Note 13). The bank
records an allowance for the LTECLs.

POCI Purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) assets are financial
assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition. POCI assets are
recorded at fair value at original recognition and interest income is
subsequently recognised based on a credit-adjusted EIR. ECLs are
only recognised or released to the extent that there is a subsequent

change in the expected credit losses.
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For financial assets for which the Bank has no reasonable expectations of recovering
either the entire outstanding amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset is reduced. This is considered a (partial) de-recognition of the

financial asset.

The Calculation of ECLs

The Bank calculates ECLs based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the
expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR, A cash shortfall is
the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive. The mechanics of the

ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

PD The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default

overa given time horizon.’A. default may only happen at a certain

EAD

LGD The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case
where a default occurs at a given time, It is based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would
expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It 1s

usually expressed as a  percentage of the EAD.

When estimating the ECLs, the Bank considers three scenarios base case, best case,
and worst case, Each of these is associated with different PDs, EADs and LGDs. When
relevant, the assessment of multiple scenarios also incorporates how defaulted loans
are expected to be recovered, including the probability that the loans will cure and the

value of collateral or the amount that might be received for selling the asset.
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2.4.12.11

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from
modification losses or gains that are accounted for as an adjustment of the financial

asset’s gross carrying value.

The Mechanics of the ECL Method are Summarised Below:

Stage 1 The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLSs that represent the
ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Bank
calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default
occurring in the 12 months following the reporting date. These
expected 12-month default probabilities are applied fo a forecast EAD
and multiplied by the expected LGD and discounted by an

approximation to the original EIR. This calculation is made for each

of the four scenarios, as explained above.

Stage 2 When a loan has sho 4 cant increase in credit risk since

Stage 3

POCI POCI assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on initial
recognition. The Bank only recognises the cumulative changes in
lifetime ECLs since initial recognition, based on a probability-

weighting of the four scenarios, discounted by the credit adjusted EIR.

Debt Instruments Measured at Fair Value through OCI

The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FYOCI do not reduce the carrying amount
of these financial assets in the statement of financial position, which remains at fair
value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the assets were
measured at amortised cost is recognised in OCI as an accumulated impairment
amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss. The accumulated loss recognised

in OCI is recycled to the profit and loss upon de-recognition of the assets.
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2.4.12,12

24.12.13

24.12.14

24.12.15

Purchased or Originated Credit Impaired Financial Assets (POCH
For POCI financial assets, the Bank only recognises the cumulative changes in LTECL

since initial recognition in the loss allowance.

Forward Looking Information
In its ECL models, the Bank relies on a broad range of forward looking information as

econornic inputs, such as:

. GDP growth Carrera
. inflation rate

. Interast Rates

. Exchange Rate

. Unemployment rates

ial statements. To reflect this,

{ ;ali}: made as temporary adjustments

Collateral Valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Bank seeks to use collateral, where
possible. The collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of
credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and
credit enhancements such as netting agreements. The Bank’s accouating policy for
collateral assigned to it through its lending arrangements under SLFRS 9 is the same is

it was under LKAS 39.

Collateral Repossessed

The Bank’s accounting policy under SLFRS 9 remains the same as it was under LKAS
39. The Bank’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for
its internal operations or should be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal

operations arc transferred to their relevant asset category at the lower of their
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2.4.12.16

2.4.13

repossessed value or the carrying value of the original secured asset. Assets for which
selling is determined to be a better option are transferred to assets held for sale at their
fair value (if financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial assets at

the Tepossession date in, line with the Bank’s policy.

In its normal course of business, the Bank does not physically repossess properties or
other assets in its retail portfolio, but engages external agents to recover funds,
generally at auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned fo the
customers/obligors. As a result of this practice, the residential properties under legal

repossession processes are not recorded on the Statement of Financial Position.

Write-offs

The Bank’s accounting policy under SLFRS 9 remains the same as it was under LKAS

39. Financial assets are written off either-:p&i‘tially or in their entirety only when the

Central Bank of Sri'L
facilitating to meet the challenges face by business & individuals due to COVID 19

a'issued circular no 05 of 2021 in May 2021 with a view of

pandemic third wave. It was further extended on September 2021 as per circular no 08
of 2021. Accordingly bank already offered the concessions in May 2021 and currently
bank is in the process of assessing the requests send by ¢ligible borrowers for the
extended relief measure

Change in rate of VAT on financial services

As per provisions of the Government Bill issued on 7 January 2022 it has been proposed

to increase the VAT on financial services.

New NPL Direction
New NPL Direction CBSL has recently issued a new set of directions pertaining to the
classification, recognition and measurement of credit facilities to be effective from 1

January 2022. The classification of Non-Performing Loans (NPL), cessation of the
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2.4.14

2.5

251

2.5.2

253

2.6

interest in suspense, adoption of SLFRS 9 stage classification, changing the existing
cross default rules, mandatory provisioning ratio for stage one loans, and new rules for
moving the financial assets among the stages. However, the new direction is applicable
only for the loans turn to NPL after 1 January 2022 while the old loans categorised as

NPL under the earlier directions will remain as it is until it will get settled.

Related Party Transactions with Government and Government Related Entities

The Bank does not elect the disclosure exemption under para 32 of LKAS 24,

Significant accounting policies — Recognition of income and expenses for

Financial Instruments

Interest Income

Details interest income are given in the note tumber 03

Interest and Similar Income

The Bank calculates interest incomg: he EIR to the gross carrying amount

of financial assets other than ¢redit-i assets. When a financial asset becomes

credit-impaired and is, theréfore, regardedidas *Stage 3°, the Bark calculates interest

interest rate fo the net amortised cost of the financial

income by applyin

assef.

Interest income oll'éiis.tr_audi}lg assets and financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at FVPL is 1'eéognised using the contractual interest rate in net trading income
and Net gains/(losses) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

respectively.

Fece and commission income

Details of “Commission income and expenses” are given in Note 5

Standards Issued but not yet Effective as at 31 December 2020
The amendments to the following existing Sri Lanka Accounting Standard which were
effective from 1 January 2020 did not have a material impact on the Financial

Statements of the Bank.
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2.6.1

2.6.2

2.7

Amendments to LKAS 1 and LKAS § with effect from 01.01.2020

Definition of material Amendments to LKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”
and LKAS 8 “Accounting policies, Changes in accounting Estimates and Errors” are
made to align the definition of “material” across the standard and to clarify certain
aspects of the definition. The new definition states that, “information is material if
omitting or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general-purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting
entity. The amendments to the definition of material are not expected to have a

significant impact on the Bank’s Financial Statements.

Amendments to SLFRS 16-“Leases” - COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions
The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying SLFRS 16 gurdance on lease

modification accounting for rent concessions:arising as a direct consequence of the

19 related rent concession th

16, if the change were not alease modification. The amendment pronouncement is not

amatertal impagt on the Bank’s financial statements.

Impact due to the COVID=19
COVID-19 pandemic;

activities, and uncertainty to the global and local economy. Subsequent to the outbreak

iflation has caused disruption to business and economic

of COVID-19 in Sri Lanka, the Bank has strictly adhered to the guidelines and
directions issued by both Government and Central Bank of Sri Lanka (CBSL) when
conducting its business operations. Further, the Bank has provided reliefs for the

affected businesses and individuals in line with the directions issued by the CBSL.

These relief measures include deferment of repayment terms of credit facilities,
offering concessionary rates of interest to eligible loan products (debt moratorium) and

waiving off certain fees and charges.
The impact of the COVID-19 on the loans and advances portfolio of the Bank has been

assessed and adjusted in these Financial Statements based on the available Information

and assumptions made as at reporting date in line with the guidelines issued by the
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CBSL and the CA Sri Lanka. However, the actual losses may differ depending on how

borrowers avail the moratorium,

Details of day one difference and interest income are disclosed in the note number
1632
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04.

03.

Gross income

Accounting Policy

Gross revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and
the revenue can be reliably measured. The specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue

recognition.

Interest Income

Fee and Commission Income

Net Fair Value Gains/(Losses) from FA at FVPL
Net Other Operating Income

Gross Income

Net Interest Income
Accounting Policy is disclosed in Note 2.2,1

Interest Income
Placements with Banks (Fixed+Savings Accounts)
Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

- Loans and Advances

First Day Impact of Moratorium Loans..
Deferred 7% interest Income on

less-7% moratorium bank cha of 1,3,4,5 waves recovered
- Debt and Other Instruments
Total Interest Income
Interest Expenses

Due to Banks

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
- Due to Depositors

- Duec to Other Borrowers

Total Interest Expenses
Net Interest Income

a, Net Income from Sri Lanka Government Sceuritics
Interest Income

(Less):Interest Expenses

Net Interest Income

165

2023 2022
Rs. Rs,
9,322,383,097 7,401,968,299
96,293,245 91,724,320
157,533,227 (2,134,408)
24,758,246 25,569,713
9,600,967,815 7,517,127,924
2022
Rs

n Sth wave

1,975,533,930

2,330,660,489

5,598,580,882.58 4,709,774,315
3,031,481 1,478,839

- 1,097,973

(532,942) (1,576,156)
1,745,769,745 360,532,839
9,322,383,097 7,401,968,299
51,052 68,915
8,702,999,134 5,433,421,943
25,285,148 29,490,550
8,728,335,334 5,462,981,408
594,047,763 1,938,986,892

1,286,407,439

262,575,535

1,286,407,489

262,575,535
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05,

06.

07.

Net Fee and Commission Income
Bank eamns fee and commission income from range of services which are provided over the period of time,

2023 2022

Rs Rs
Fee and Cormmission Income 96,293,245 91,724,320
Net Fee and Commission Income 96,293,245 91,724,320
Comprising
Bank Service Charges - Loans and Advances 84,074,511 84,406,618
Legal & Technical Fees - Loans and Advances 1,841,929 80,317
Other Charges 10,376,804 7,237,386
Net Fee and Commission Income 96,293,245 91,724,320

Net Fair Value Gains (Losses) From Financial Instrume
Accounting Policy

Net trading income includes all gains and losses and related-divil
profit or loss” other than interest income

alue Through Profit or Loss

iancial assets recognized through

2023 2022
Rs Rs
Gains on financial assets at fair val 157,533,227 -

- (2,134,408)

Losses on financial assets at faig
157,533,227 (2,134,408)

Total

Other Operating Income (net)
Accounting Policy

Dividend earned from financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is recognized
when the Group's right to receive the payment is established

Dividend Income 18,765,120 21,324,000
Sundry Income 5,993,126 4,245,713
Other Operating Income (net) 24,758,246 25,569,713
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08.

09.

Impairment Charges (Reversal) for Loans and Other Losses

Accounting Policy
The Bank recognize the changes in the impairment provisions for all financial instruments, which are

assessed as per Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Standard — SLFRS 9 on “Financial Instruments”. The
measurement of impairment losses under SLFRS 9 on all categories of financial assets requires
judgment, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral
values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk.

adopted for impairment is explained in Note 16 to the Financial Statements

2023 2022

Rs Rs
Financial Assets at AC - Loans and Advances
Stage 1 _ _(33,071,918) 130,450,499
Stage 2 ' 134,752,054 114,418,254
Stage 3 4,352 119,179,592

Other Financial assets at amortised cost

Stage 1 5,137,783 2,691,805
Stage 2 - (993,122)
Stage 3 - -
Total 440,722,270 365,747,028

Personnel Expenses

Accounting Policy

01. Defined contribution plans
Bank operate under mentioned Defined Contribution plan during the financial year 2023,

Contributions made were recorded as an expense under “Personnel expenses”. Unpaid contributions
are recorded as a liability,

(a} Employees’ Provident Fund
Accounting policy is disclosed in the 2.4.1
{b) Employees’ Trust Fund

Accounting policy is disclosed in the 2.4.1
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09.1

09.2

Staff Expenses

Salaries and Bonus

Defined Contribution Plan- EPF & ETF
Defined Benefits Plans - Gratuity Provision
Encashment of Sick Leave

Overtime and Qut of Pocket Allowance
Staff Study and Training

Medical Scheme - Payments

Medical Scheme - Provision (IFRS)
Welfare

Insurance

Staff Loan day 1 Difference (IFRS)
Compensation

PAYE Tax on Employment Income
Total

Less - IFRS Provisions

Staff Loan day 1 Difference (IFRS)

Medical Scheme - Provision (IFRS)
Actual Total S

Contribution — Retired

Amount recognized as expense

2023 2022
Rs Rs
717,390,410 830,283,079
126,447,541 118,346,815
59,542,589 41,353,107
29,964,922 31,020,486
5,850,366 8,648,568
1,944,205 1,044,050
62,874,231 70,936,477
54,114,387 15,568,572
7,171,626 4,128,876
469,387 1,061,997
(53,202,988) (38,525,209)
867,538 459,558
- 5,628,889
5013,434,215 1,089,955,263
53,202,988 38,525,209
(54,114,387} (15,568,572)
1,012,522,816 1,112,911,900
2023 2022
Rs. Rs.
54,114,387 30,993,049

Retired staff medical scheme has been established for the all employees of the Bank. Actuarial valuation
was carried out by Mr M Poopalanathan, AIA, of Messrs Actuarial & Management Consultants (Pvt)
Ltd., a firm of professional Actuaries, on 31 December 2023, (Refer Noie)

Contribution - Gratuity
Amount recognized as expense

2023

2022

59,542,589.00
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16. Other Expenses

Accounting Policy

Other operating expenses are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss on the basis of a direct
association between the cost incurred and the earning of specific items of income. All expenditure
incurred in the running of the business and maintaining the property, plant and equipment in a state of
efficiency has been charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss in arriving at the profit of the year.
Provisions in respect of other expenses are recognized when the bank has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Expenses of depreciation and amortisation of property plant and equipment and intangible
assels are separated from other expenses and disclosed in the face of income statement.

2023 2022

Rs Rs
Directors® Emoluments 1,998,974 3,565,629
Auditors' Remuneration 5,564,435 3,000,000
Professional and Legal Expenses 7,399,866 4,338,676
Office Administration and Establishment Experises 156,522,263 135,892,205
Advertising and Promotional Expenses 9,359,051 17,329,178
Motor Vehicle Maintenance & Travellin 7,984,571 11,084,248
General Expense 11,690,094 20,042,587
Other Losses, Bad Debis: - -
CBSL Deposit Insurance 51,678,387 47,776,181
Other Expenses 103,626,794 110,399,574
Total 355,824,435 353,428,278
Depreciation/Amortisation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation - Property, Plant and Equipment 21,007,983 17,994,398
Depreciation - Leased Assets 79,069,535 78,581,186

100,077,518 96,575,584
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11.

Tax Expenses
Accounting Pelicy

Current Tax Expenses -Tax Rate 24% and 30%
Currenl tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the

Commissioner General of Inland Revenue in respect of the current as well as prior vears. The tax rates
and fax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or subsequenily enacted at the
reporling date. Accordingly, provision for taxation is made on the basis of the accounting profit for the
year as adjusted for taxation purpose in accordance with the provision of the Inland Revenue Act No,
24 of 2017 and the amendment thereto, at the rates specified in Notes 2.3

Deferred taxation-Tax Rate 30%
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date

purpose. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductiblé temporary differences, carry forward of

unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the exte probable that taxable profits will be

available against which they can be used.

réporting date and reduced to the extent
wvailable to allow all or part of the deferred

recognize to the extent that is‘,p_mb_abiez at future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

ilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply in the year
ilities are settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been

Deferred tax assets and Tiab
when the assets are realized or the Hal
the reporting date.

enacted or subsequently enacte

Bank’s standard tax rate increased from 24.0% to 30.0% in the year 2022, and a newly implemented
Social Security Contribution Levy of 2.5% came in to effect, while VAT on financial services increased
from 15.0% to 18.0% w.e.f. 1st January 2022. Increase in deferred tax asset as a result of unused tax
losses and substantial impairment charges recognized along with the reversal of previous years’ tax
provisions with the settlement of past tax assessments, the Bank recognized a tax c¢redit of Rs 442 Mn
for the current year

2023 2022
Rs Rs
Current Tax Expense
Current Year (52,865,364) 104,722,527
Deferred Tax Expense/(Credit) (441,524,768} (395,525,635)
Total (494,390,132) (290,803,108)
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11.1 Reconciliation of Tax Expenses

Profit/{Loss) before Tax (1,042,551,826)

Adjustment in Respect of Current Income Tax of Prior Periods

Add: Tax Effect of Expenses/income reductions that are 534,849,028

not Deductible for Tax Purposes

{Less): Tax Effect of Expenses that are Deductible for (583,246,679)

Tax Purposes T
Disposal of Assets 885,920
Dividends 18,765,120

147,105,580

566,927,276

(150,683,823)

(19,189,592)

Adjusted Profits for the Year (1,071,298,437)

Taxation Based on Profit for the Year
Taxation based on dividend income at 14%
Transfer to/from Deferred Taxation

{Over)/Under Provision in Previous years (55,492,480)

544,159,441

146,923,049

2,985,360
(395,525,635)
(45,185,882)

Tax Expense for the Period (494,390,132)

{294,803,108)

11.2 The Deferred Tax {Cre

Comprises from the chinges on the Follg

Deferred Tax Assets

Income Statement and Other Comprehensive Income

Property, Plant & Equipment (35,613,577) (7,264,080)
Employee Benefit Obligations 179,302,267 156,548,011
Impairment Provision 613,339,601 480,556,755
Right to use Assets (1,526,259) {2,748,015)
Moratorium First Day Impact 4,154,337 5,063,781
Unused Tax Losses 321,389,531 -
Deferred Tax Assets 1,081,045,899 632,156,452
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12. Analysis of Financial Instruments by Measurement Basis - Bank - Current Year (2623)
Accounting Policy
The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category as defined in Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Standard —

SLFRS 9 on “Financial Instruments” under headings of the Statement of Financial Position are summarised below

In Rs, | AC | FVPL [ FVOCI | Total |
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 122,600,853 - 122,600,853
Placements with banks 2,923,132,097 - 2,923,132,097
Loans and advances 38,725,208,636 - 38,725,208,636
Debt instruments 781,224,416 - 781,224,416
Reverse Repos 970,572,268 - 970,572,268
Treasury Bills 9,840,233,022 - 9,840,233,022
Treasury Bonds 415,464,023 - 415,464,023
Commercial Papers 155,250,000 - 155,250,000
Unit Trusts - - 3,552,533,227
Unquoted Shares - 5,379,078 5,379,078
Total financial assets 53,933,685,316 5,379,078 57,491,597,621
LIABILITIES

Due to banks - 2,732,792

Financial liabilities

- Due to depositors

52,138,134,453

- Due to other borrowers - 181,630,080
Total Financial Liabilities - 52,322.497,325
AC - Financial assets/liabi]

FVPL - Financial assets/lid

FVOCI - Financial assets me lue through other comprehensive income

Bank - Previous Year (2022)

In Rs, FVPL FYOCI Total
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 126,480,437 - 126,480,437
Placements with banks 13,002,272,044 - 13,002,272,044
Loans and advances 39,267,237,754 - 39,267,237,754
Debt instruments 300,476,712 - 300,476,712
Reverse Repos 70,055,770 - 70,055,770
Treasury Bills 1,819,859,101 - 1,819,859,101
Treasury Bonds 384,601,856 - 384,601,856
Unguoted Shares - 5,379,078 5,379,078
Total financial assets 54,970,983,675 5,379,678 54,976,362,753
LIABILITIES

Duc to banks 23,380,935 - 23,380,935

Financial liabilities

- Due to depositors

49,139,971,357

49,139,971,357

- Due to other borrowers

278,050,561

278,050,561

Total Financial Liabilities

49,441,402,853

49,441,402,853
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13,

14,

4.1

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounting Policy
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, balances with banks, money at call and short notice

that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in their value. Cash and cash equivalents are carried

at amortised cost less impairment in the Statement of Financial Position. Balances with banks, and

money at call and short notice are subject to the impairment as per SLFRS 9 on “Financial Instrument

2023 2022

Rs Rs
Cash in hand 62,943,092 67,855,968
Balances with banks 59,657,762 58,624,470
Total 122,600,853 126,480,437

Placements with Banks
Accounting Policy

SLFRS 9 on “Financial Instrument” base

2023 2022
Rs Rs

Fixed Deposiis
NDB -
NSB - 2,871,326,932
PB 2,929,999,099 3,981,240,459
SDB - 876,057,140
BOC - 4,222,567,216
Call Deposit
BOC - 302,268,493
Savings Accounts-Investments
SDB 1,213,045 203,033,375
NDB 4,770 548,725,264

Graoss Total

2,931,216,914

13,005,219,079
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14.2

15.

2023

2022

Stage 1

Opening balance as at 01/01/2023 2,947,034
Charge/{ Write back) to income statement 5,137,783
Write-off during the year -
Other movements -

255,230
2,691,305

Closing balance at 31/12/2023 8,084,817

2,947,034

Stage 2
Opening balance as at 01/01/2023 -
Charge/{ Write back) to income statement -
Write-off during the year
Other movements

993,122
(993,122)

Closing balance at 31/12/2023

Stage 3
Opening balance as at 01/01/2023
Charge/{ Write back) to income statement
Write-off during the year
Other movements

Closing balance at 31/12,

C. Net Placement with banks - 2,923,132,097

13,002,272,044

Financial Assets Recognized Through Profit or Loss
2023
Rs

2022
Rs

Unit Trusts (NDB) 3,552,533,227

Total 3,552,533,227

a, Analysis
2023

Rs
By collateralisation

Pledged as collateral -
Unencumbered 3,552,533,227

2022

Gross totai 3,552,533,227
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ié6. Financial Assets at Amortised Cost - Loans and Advances

Accounting Policy

Loans and advances include non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, other than instrument which to seli immediately or in the near term and
those that the bank, upon initial recognition, designates as at fair value through profit or loss Those items
, upen initial recognition, designates financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Those item may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than due to credit

deterioration,

Loans and advances” include amounts due from banks and other customers. After initial measurement,
loans and advances are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR, less allowance for
impairment, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The amortisation is included in “Interest income”
in the Income Statement. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in “Impairment charge for

loans and other losses” in the Income Statement.

16.1
Gross loans and advances
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
(Less): Accumuiated impairment unde

2023 2022

Rs Rs
1.007.864,295 41,117,340,406
25,024,165,494 28,514,541,265

5,325,583,522

10,658,115,278

3,548,045,184
9,054,753,958

Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Net Loans and Advan

Less - First Day impact of M
Carrying Value of Loans and Advances

16.2  Analysis

By product

Mortgage

EPF

Vehicle

Staff loans

Personal Loans

Others

Less-

Allowance for Day [ Difference - Staff Loans
Gross Total

By collateralization
Collateral held as Security
Other Credit Enhancements
Gross Total

2,268,807,869 1,833,223,382
409.878,959 462,950,878
398,838,344 264,086,290
1,460,090,566 1,166,186,214
38,739.056,425 39,284,117.024
13,847,789 16,879,270
38,725,208,636 39,267,237,754
2023 2022
Rs Rs
10,179,549,598 10,836,307,405

8,857,459,543
1,208,081,194
19,294,824,024
1,864,188,107

6,644,199,224
1,360,479,032
20,751,939,449
1,973,856,456

(396,238,171) (449,441,159)
41,007,864,295 41,117,340,406
19,037,009,141 17,480,506,629
21,970,855,154 23,636,833,777
41,007,864,295 41,117,340,406
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163  Movements in impairment during the year
When objective evidence are available that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured based on difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows and carrying amount of the asset is reduced and charged to provision account and the
amount of the loss is recognized in the Income Statement.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR,
when The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial

asset cash flows from For sale value less any less costs of foreclosure is considered.

a Collective Assessment of Impairment
If bank is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed

financial asset, base on hormorginity of the product features of the asset and of financial assets with

similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesges them for impairment

b Individeal assessment of impairment
For financial assets carried at amortised cost (such

assesses individually whether objective gvi tment exists for financial assets that are

individually significant, or collectively:for finan ets that are not individually significant. If the

which an impairment loss 1520 continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of

impairment. If there is objectiveé_eyidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the

loss is measured as the difference een the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows {excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of a impairment provision account and the amount of the
loss is recognized in the Income Statement. Interest income continues te be accrued on the carrying
amount at the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the

impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of “Interest and similar income"
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The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR. If
a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current EIR.
If the bank reclassified trading assets to loans and receivables, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the new EIR determined at the reclassification date. The calculation of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may
resull from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is
probable. Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Bank. If, in a
subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment toss increased or decreased because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to

the “Credit loss expense”

Write-off of loans and advances )
The Bank accounting policy for write-off under SLF]

is gij;:ater than the accumulated loss allowance, the

e al “giﬁi/anq_é":"tilat is then applied against the gross carrying

amount. If a write-off is late

2023 2022
Stage 1 Rs Rs
Opening balance as at 01/‘0}/‘2.02 462,950,878 247,904,755

Charge/{Write back) to income stat (53,071,918) 84,595,623
Write-off during the year - -
Closing balance at 31/12/2023 409,878,959 462,950,878
Stage 2

Opening balance as at 01/01/2023 264,086,290 89,207,499
Charge/(Write back) to income statement 134,752,054 60,460,538
Write-off during the year - -
Closing balance at 31/12/2023 398,838,344 264,086,290
Stage 3

Opening balance as at 01/01/2023 1,106,186,214 766,340,454
Charge/(Write back) to income statement 353,904,352 220,666,168
Write-off during the year - -
Closing balance at 31/12/2023 1,460,090,566 1,106,186,214
Total 2,268,807,869 1,833,223,382
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b Allowance for credit impairment for moratorium Faciliti

16.3.2 Impact of COVID-19 to Loan and Advances and ECL provision

a Overview
COVID-19 pandemic situation has caused disruption to business and economic activities, and uncertainty
to the global and local economy. Subsequent to the outbreak of COVID-19 in Sri Lanka, the Bank has
strictly adhered to the guidelines and directions issued by both Government and Central Bank of Sri
Lanka (CBSL) when conducting its business operations, Further, the Bank has provided reliefs for the
affected businesses and individuals in line with the directions issued by the CBSL.

These relief measures include deferment of repayment terms of credit facilities, offering concessionary
rates of interest to eligible loan products (debt moratorium) and waiving off certain fees and charges

The impact of the COVID-19 on the loans and advances portfolio of the Bank has been assessed and
adjusted in these Financial Statements based on the available Information and assumptions made as at
reporting date in line with the guidelines issued by the CBSL and the CA Sri Lanka. However, the actual

losses may differ depending on how borrowers avail th no"'

granted.

Relief prorams granted“to:customers may not resulted to migration stage 2 unless determined that

.based on. ‘our assessment of the changes in the risk of a default occurring

there was a evidence for SI
over the expected life of a loa h requires additional provision for impairment. judgment is being
used to identify of the business segment and individual customers highly affected by COVID-19,
associated credit risk of such groups which are classified in the bothl2-month and lifetime expected

credit losses based on SIRC.

¢ Use of Management overlays

Management overlays is being used for ECL to captures variables which do not capture all relevant risk
factors under existing assumption and model use for impairment. By occurrence of ECL sengitive
information such as sudden changes of the macroeconomic variables or political events with associated
expected changes on parameters, models or data which are not incorporated in our current parameters

such as forward-looking information are considered under management overlays.
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To arrest the Impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and associated uncertainties embedded with current
environment, Management overlays is being used with respect to assess the migration of risk of certain
business and individual customers which exposed to  risks and the resulting measurement of the ECL
for those exposures. In normalizing of relief granied under Government supporl measures was
considered in the determination of these overlays to the extent not already reflected in our models.
Management overlays were applied with respect to the impact of Government support and client relief
measures on the migration of retail exposures and the resulting measurement of the ECL for those
exposures. The use of Management overlays requires the application of significant judgment that impacts
the amount of BECL allowances recognized. Actual credit losses could differ materially from those
reflected in our estimates. The forward PDs are applied to all the customers despite of their category in
the debt moratorium or payment deferment

d Move loans and advances from Stage 1 to Stage 2

Retail loans and advances of selected sectors which were ini

ere moved from State I to Stage 2 and

ierided 31 December 2022.

As a result, Loans and Advances amounting to Rs. 3,3

provision for impairment was increased by Rs. 134.75
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17. Financial Assets at Amortised Cost - Debt and Other Instruments

Accounting Policy

Financial assets at amortised cost — debt and other instruments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed maturities, which the bank has the intention and ability to hold to
maturity. After initial measurement, financial assets at amortised cost — debt and other instruments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the EIR. The

amortisation is included in “Interest and similar income” in the Income Statement. The losses arising from

impairment of such investments are recognized in the Income Statement line “Impairment charges

2023 2022
Rs Rs
Treasury Bills 840,233,022 1,819,859,101
Treasury Bonds 384,601,856
Debenture 781,224,416 300,476,712
Reverse Repos 070,572,268 70,055,770
Commercial Paper 155,250,000 -
Graoss total 12,162,743,730 2,574,993,439
17.1 Analysis

By collateralization

Pledged as collateral - -
Unencumbered 12,162,743,730 2,574,993,439
Gross total 12,162,743,739 2,574,993,439

2023 2022
17.2 Stage3

Opening balance as at 01/01/2023 - -
Charge/(Write back) to income statement - -
Write-off during the year - -
Other movements - -
Closing balance at 31/12/2023 - -
C. Net Financial Assets at Amortized Cost 12,162,743,730 2,574,993,439
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18,

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
Accounting Policy

Equity and debt securities are classified under Financial Assets Fair Value Through other
Comprehensive income . Equity investments classified as Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Income are those which are held as strategic investment. Pebt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to

needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.

Equity instruments fair value through other comprehensive income

Bank has to classified some equity investments under FVOCI when they meet the definition of

Equity under LKAS 32 on “Financial Instruments: Presentation” and are not held for trading. Such

classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Con

2022

Rs
Unquoted Shares
CRIB 4,754,078 4,754,078
Fitch Rating 625,000 625,000
Gross total 5,379,078 5,379,078
a. Analysis
By collateralization
Pledged as collateral “ -
Unencumbered 5,379,078 5,379,078
Gross total 5,379,078 5,379,078
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19.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Aceounting Palicy

Basis of Recognition
Property, plant and equipment are recognized if it is probable that future benefits associated with the asset will flow to the bank and cost of the asset can be

reliably measured. Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost including costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Basis of measurement
An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured at cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the asset and subsequent costs, The seff-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs
directly attributable to bring the asset to a working condition for its intended use and the cost of dismantiing and removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are tocated and capitalised borrowing costs. Purchased software which is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part

of compater equipment.
Cost model

The Bank applies cost model to property, plant and equipment except for freehold land and buitdings and records at cost of purchase or construction together
with any incidental expenses thereon less accurmulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses,

19,

a. Property, Plant and Equipment

Furniture & .
In Rs. Vehicles | Fittings & Office Computer WER Site Total
. Software Development

Equipment
2023 (Current Year)
Cost/Fair Value
Opening Balance as at 01/61/2023 70,798,254 168,969,16 4,395,518 460,000 411,633,442
Additions - - 92,844,755 114,589,387
Disposals - - - (6,683,132)
Adjustments - - - -
Closing Balance as at 31/12/2023 70,798,254 4,395,518 93,304,755 519,539,697
(Less): Accumuiated Depreciation ]
Opening Balance as at 01/01/2023 _T0798.25: 136,740,714 4,395,518 17,486 333,420,634
Charge for the Year 9,696,018 - 57,500 21,007,983
Dispaosals (2,398,948} - - (6,540,084)
Adjustments - - - -
Closing Balance as at 31/12/2023 w 128,581,991 144,037,784 4,195,518 74,986 347,888,533
Net Book Value as at 31/12/2023 45,125,104 33,296,292 - 93,229,768 171,651,164

Furniture & .

In Rs. Vehicles | Fittings & Office | CPMPuter Computer | WEB Site Total
s Equipment Software Development

Equipment
2022 (Proevious Year)
Cost/Fair Yalue
Opening Balance as at #1/01/2022 70,798,254 157,416,485 142,496,324 4,395,518 - 375,106,581
Additions - 13,646,740 26,282,918 - 460,000 40,389,658
Disposals/Adjustments " (2.094,060) (1,768,737) - - (3,862,797}
Adjustments - - - - - -
Closing Balance as at 31/12/2022 70,798,254 168,969,165 167,010,505 4,395,518 460,000 411,633,442
(Less): Accumulated Deprecintion
Opening Balance as at 01/01/2022 70,798,254 112,487,293 131,569,752 4,395,518 - 319,250,817
Charge for the Year - 11,037,212 6,939,699 17,480 17,994,398
Disposals - (2.092,564) (1,768,737} - - (3,861,301)
Adjustmems - 36,720 - - - 36,720
Clasing Balance as at 31/12/2022 70,798,254 121,468,661 136,740,714 4,395,518 17,486 333,420,634
Net Book Value as at 31/12/2022 - 47,500,504 30,269,790 - 442,514 78,212,808
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19.2 Fully Depreciated Property Plant and Equipment
Fully Depreciated Property Plant and Equipment which still arc in usc as follows

As at 31 December 2023 2022

Vehicles 70,798,254 70,798,254
Fumiture & Fittings & Office Equipment 93,451,926 83,134,589
Computer Equipmeni 120,030,133 122,429,081
Computer Software 4,395,518 4,395,518
Taoltal 288,675,831 280,757,442

19.3 Temporarily Idle Property Plant and Egnipment
There were no temporally idie property plant and equipment as at reporting date

19,4 Property Plant and Equipment Retired from Active Use
There were not property ,plan and equipment retired from active use which were not classified as held for sale in accordance with SLFRS 5 - Non current

assets held for sale and discontinued operations.
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20. Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)
Accounting Policy
Accounting Policy on Deferred tax disclosed in the Note 11

2023 2022
Rs Rs
Opening Balance 01/61/2023 632,156,451 222,859,204
Charge for the year Recognized in
- Profit/{Loss) 441,524,768 339,810,834
- Profit/{Loss} - Impact on changes in Tax Rate - 55,714,801
- Other Comprehensive Income (30% taken) 7,364,679 13,771,613
Closing Balance 31/12/2023 1,081,045,899 632,156,451
21. Other Assets
2023 2022
Rs
Stationary Stock : 14,174,317
Deposits and Prepayments 35,256,150 2,067,702
Prepaid Staff Loans 396,238,171 449 441,159
VAT Receivable 9,952,433 -
NBT Receivable 3,603,588 3,603,588
DRI Receivable 15,591,023 15,591,023
WHT Receivable 115,975,117 -
7% Interest Receivable on 6,742,821 6,742,821
Interest Receivable - Seniot: 7' i - 571,719,963
Others - 4,874,997 13,135,684
Total 603,273,206 1,076,476,258
22. Due to Banks
2023 2022
Rs Rs
Borrowings {ODs) 2,732,792 23,380,935
Repo agreements - -
Total 2,732,792 23,380,935

23. Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Accounting Policy

Due to depositors include savings deposits and term deposits. Subsequent to initial recognition deposits are

Due to depositors
Repo agreements
Other borrowings

181,630,080

2023 2022
Rs Rs
52,138,134,453 49,139,971,357

278,050,561

Total

52,319,764,533

49,418,021,919
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23.1 Analysis of amount due to depositors

2023
Rs

2022
Rs

By Product
Savings deposits 2,202,016,436 2,019,713,462
Fixed deposits 49,323,667,095 46,114,086,448
Other deposits (Schemes) 612,450,922 1,006,171,448
Total 52,138,134,453 49,139,971,357
23.2  Analysis of ofher borrowings
2023 2022
Rs Rs
Bank Loans - -
AHF - - {2)
CBSL Refinance Loans 22,029,668 79,948,078
Lease Liabikity 159,600,412 198,102,485
Total 181,630,080 278,050,561
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24, Employee Benefit

The Bank measures the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation (PVDBO) which is a defined benefit plan with the
advice of an actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method,

The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rate, expected rates of return on assets, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.
the employee benefit obligation as at 31st December 2023 is calculated based on the actuarial valuation report as of 31st

December 2023, carried ouf by Actuarial & Management Consultants (Put) Ltd.

The key assumptions used by the actuary include the following;

2023 2022
Raie of Interest 13.00% 18.00%
Rate of Salary Increase 10.00% 10.00%
Retirement Age 55-60 years 55-60 years

Gratuity

Provision for Gratuity
Balance at the Beginning of the Year
Current Service Cost
Interest Cost

. 24,407,553
(18,589,241)

Benefit Paid

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 16,559,230

Total 245,562,689
: 2022

Sensitivity Analysis of Present Vialue of Defined Benefit Obligation

Assumption changed (while all othgic asss PY-DBO (Rs,)

A one percentage point increase (+1%):ir

the discount rate 275,457,498 234,841,503

A one percentage point decrease (-1%)

in the discount rate 310,420,576 257,416,374

A one percentage point increase (+1%) in

the salary/wage increment ratc 312,316,801 259,314,944

A one percentage point decrease (-1%) in

the salary/wage increment rate 273,530,916 232,988,743

Maturity Profile of the Gratuity Provision as at 31.12,2023

AVG
Future |TOT_Provisi
TOT_ Basic Salary |TOT_COLA] Working | en (PV-DBQ

AGE GROUP No_Emps (Rs.} (Rs.} Lifetime )(Rs.)

XV:20to 24 5 124,795 64,129 18.5 82,076
XV:25t0 29 42 1,351,595 1,282,572 173 3,209,475
XV; 301034 75 3,718,835] 4,809,644 16,2 22,204,878
XV: 35 to 39 59 4,376,295{ 3,783,587 13.9 30,075,016
XV: 40 to 44 56 4,410,860 3,591,201 11.6 39,835,728
XV:45 1049 47 4,231,465 3,014,044 9.0 49,191,301
XV: 50 to 54 34 3,344,915] 2,180,372 5.7 53,209,424
XV:551t0359 36 3,902,960} 2,308,629 2.2 94,070,635
TOTAL 354 25,461,720) 21,034,178 12.0 | 291,878,533
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Medical

2023 2022
Provision for Medical Benefit Rs Rs
Balance at the Beginning of the Year 276,264,014 225,349,295
Current Service Cost 4,386,865 5,077,880
Inferest Cost 49,727,522 25,915,169
Actuarial (Gain)/Losses (7,734,321) 35,346,147
Benefit Paid (16,848,390} (15,424,477}
Total 305,795,690 276,264,014
Total Employee Benefit Liability 597,674,223 521,826,703

Sensitivity Analysis of Present Value of Benefit Obligation

+1% Discount

Rate PV-DBO- Yo ount Rate
Category (Rs.) PV-DBOy(Rs.)

Active employees -Pensioner Medical =
benefits (Medical Fund) 43,650,110
Pensioners -Medical benefit (Medical

Fund) 202,845,191
TOTAL 346,561,301

25. Other Liabilities

Accounting Policies

Other liabilities include provision: in aggount of , fees and expenses, tax payable unappropriated customer receipt,

leave encashment and other expenses.

2023 2022
Rs Rs
Taxes Payable 22,143,072 156,567,463
Accrued Expenditure 93,597,611 82,307,504
Other liabilities 68,860,194 88,231,424
Estate Refind Creditors 12,006,515 19,857,397
Margin Account-SP.Loan for ETF board (I 343,156,868 38,400,108
Margin Account 98,776,709 67,720,997
Margin Account-Waste Management 25,552,215 25,072,048
Customer Refund-Closed Loan 13,414,849 29,073,781
Total 677,508,033 527,230,721
25.1 Taxes Payable
Income Tax 2,627,117 134,000,281
Payee Tax 7,161,290 2,172,154
WHT Payable 21,485,961 ()]
VAT Payable (11,010,131} 17,016,191
SSCL Payable 1,878,830 3,378,836
Taxes Payable 22,143,672 156,567,463
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26.

27.

28.

Stated Capital/Assigned Capital

2023 2022
Rs Rs
Authorized Capital 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Contributed Capital 889,812,899 889,812,899

As per the provisions of the State Mortgage and Investment Bank Law No.13 of 1975 and amendments
thereto, the authorized capital is Rs.2 Billion. Contributed capital consists of the amounts outstanding on
1st January 1979 of the sums advanced to the Agricultural and Industrial Credit Corporation in terms of
section 22 of the Agricultural and Industrial Credit Corporation Ordinance together with the amount of
the reserves of the Agricultural and Industrial Credit Corporation and the amounts standing fo the credit
reserve fund of the Ceylon State Mortgage Bank on 1st January 1979 formed part of the capital of the
Bank and all such amounts are deemed to be contributions to the capital of the Bank by the Government,

The Government after the appointment date of st January.1979 made a contribution to the capital of the

Bank so that the amounts of such contribution toge;
amounted to RS.889,812,899 as at 31st December 2

Further ,as per the provisions of the Act ,SMIB rnay
further contribution to the capital of the Bauk
Government or any other source what so ev

sums of money raised from the Government which shal!

amounts referred to the above paragraph

me ,raisc such sums of money as
manner as the Bank deems fit, from the
¢ of the Republic of Sri Lanka and where such
‘harged on the consolidated fund.

Statutory Reserve Fund
2023 2022
Rs Rs
Opening Balance as at 01 January 306,650,839 296,560,939
Transfer During the Penod : - 10,089,900
Closing Balance as at 31° December 306,650,839 306,650,839
Retained Earnings
2023 2022
Rs Rs
Opening Balance as at 01* January 4,200,211,965 4,019,389,735
Prior Period Adjustments - 21,247,904
Impairment 1st day Adjustment - -
OCI Reserve Transfer - -
Profit for the Year (548,161,694) 201,797,990

Transfers to Other Reserves
Other Comprehensive Income
Deemed Dividend Tax

(17,184,252)

(10,089,900)
(32,133,764)

Closing Balance as at 31* December 3,634,866,019 4,200,211,965
Prior Period Adjustments

Error occurred due to over under provision of liabilities - 22,111,034
Over provision of accumulated depreciation - (36,720)
Error occurred due to reversal of interest receivable -

Unreconciled Control Account - (826,410)
Total - 21,247,904
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29, Other Reserves

a. Bank - Current year (2023) Rs
Reserve Opening balance as Movements/ Closing Balance

at 01/01/2023 Transfers as at 31/12/2023
General Reserve 683,280,000 - 683,280,000
Capital Reserve 393,498,004 - 393,498,004
Title Indemnity Fund 1,031,000 - 1,031,000
Total 1,077,809,004 - 1,6'77,809,004

29.1 b. Bank — Previous year (2022)

Rs

R Opening balance as Movements/ Closing Balance

eserve at 01/01/2022 Transfers as at 31/12/2022
General reserve - 683,280,000
Capital Reserve - 393,498,604
Title Indemnity Fund - 1,031,000
Total - 1,077,809,004

30. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Accounting Policy

Contingent habilities are possible

present obligation where the.

in the Sri Lanka Accounting‘uS andard — LKAS 37 on “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.

To meet the financial needs of custo

liabilities. These consist of finance guarantees and other undrawn commitrents to lend.

2023 2022
Rs Rs
Guarantees issued - 350,000
Other commitments 62,395,844 40,802,056
Total 62,395,844 41,152,056

the Bank enters into various irrevocable commitments and contingent

In the normal course of business, the Bank makes various commitments and incurs certain contingent liabilities
with legal recourse to its customers. No material losses are anticipated as a result of these transactions.
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31.

311

32.

321

322

Related party disclosures

Accounting Policy

The Bank carried out transactions in the ordinary course of business on an arm’s length basis at commercial rates
with parties who are defined as related parties as per the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard — LKAS 24 on “Related
Party Disclosures” i.e. Government of Sri Lanka, subsidiaries, post employment benefit plans for the Bank’s
employees, Key Management Personnel (KMPs). Those transactions include lending activities, placements, off-
balance sheet transactions and provision of other banking and financial services that are carried out in the ordinary
course of business on an arm’s length basis at commercial rates, other than, transactions that the Key Management
Personnel (KMP) have availed under schemes uniformly applicable to all staff at concessionary rates. Particulars
of transactions with related parties are tabulated below

Transactions with Gevernment of Sri Lanka (Parent) and state controlled entitics

As at 31 December 2023 2022
Rs. Rs.
Investments made on Government Securities 10,255,697,045 2,112,448,122

3,711,223,515 11,677,879,812
970,572,268 70,055,770
- 571,719,963

Investments on state and state-controlled entities
Securities purchased under resale agreements
Other receivables from Government

Total 14,937,492,828 14,432,103,667
Tax paid

Incorme tax - 85,810,622
Value added tax & SSCL 18,000,000 224,608,218
Total 18,000,000 310,418,840

r planning, dirécting and controlling the activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries
and Associates. The Board of Directors, Members of the Corporate Management of the Bank, key employees and
their Close Family Members(CFM) have been classified as Key Management Personnel of the Bank.

Compensation to Key Management Personnel

2023 2022
Rs Rs
Short - Term Employment Benefits 60,869,340 43,947,612
Post - Employment Benefits 9,653,878 7,911,734
Total 70,523,218 51,859,347

(B} Transactions ,arrangements and agreements involving Key Management Personnel ,their Close Family
Members (CFMs) and entitics that are controlled, significantly influenced by the KMPs or their CFMs.

Income Statement

Interest Earned (From Loans) 1,917,773 2,613,865
Interest Paid (To Deposits) 2,998,160 2,328,357
Payment made as shown in 33 (A) 70,523,218 51,858,347
Statement of Financial Positicn

Assets

Loans and Advances 28,345,975 55,811,615
Liabilitics

Deposits 18,527,716 27,691,700
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33.

33.1

Leases

Accounting Policy
Basis of Recognition
The Bank recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date as specified in

the Lease Agreement), which is the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term

Basis of measurement

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any measurement of lease liabitities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognized, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received

Useful economic life and amortisation
Unless the Bank is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the

recognized right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to jmpairment

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet

The statement of financial position shows the following ax

nts relating to leases:

2023 2022
Rs. Rs.

Right-of-use Assets
Cost
Opening Balance 429,060,782 257,645,546
Additions- Buildings 36,583,273 171,415,236
Closing Balance 465,644,054 429,060,782
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Balance 227,324,068 148,742,882
During the year charge 79,069,535 78,581,186
Closing Balance 306,393,603 227,324,068
Net Book Value 159,250,451 201,736,713

2023 2622

Rs. Rs.

Lease liabilities
Opening Balance 198,102,485 100,219,472
Additions 22,567,973 153,839,400
Interest Charge 23,092,806 25,079,981
Payments (84,162,852) (81,036,369}
Closing Balance 159,600,412 198,102,485
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33.2 Amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss

The Income Statement shows the following amounts relating to leases:

2023 2022
Rs. Rs.
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
Building 79,069,535 78,581,186
Interest Expense 23,092,806 25,079,981
33.3 Impact of income statements due to interest rate shock Impact to profitability
1%+ Scenario 01 (347)
1% - Scenario 01 431
2022
34. Reconciliation of VAT Expense Rs.
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (1,037,425957) 147,105,580

Adjustment in Respect of Current period,

Add: Expenses/income reducti Deduétlble for

2
VAT Purposes 1,036,435,63

(23,973,307)

Purposes

1,105,882,807

(23,148,882)

(Less): Expenses that are Deductible for Vi

Adjusted Profits for the Yea (24,963,632) 1,229,839,505
VAT Based on Profit for the Ye = . 186,629,594
{Over)/Under Provision in Previous years 5,125,869 44,437,052
Tax Expense for the Period 5,125,869 231,066,646
VAT Payable Reconciliation 2023 2022

Rs. Rs.
Opening VAT Receivable 17,016,191 {17,855,075)
payments made (43,104,624) (196,195,330)
Provision made 6,989,869 231,066,646
During the year tax addition to P&L {1,864,000) -
Transfer to VAT Receivable account 9,952,433
Closing VAT Receivable (11,010,131) 17,016,191
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3s.

36.

37.

Events occurring after the Date of Statement of Financial Position Accounting policy

Events after the reporting period are those events that occur between the reporting date and the date when the
Financial Statements are authorized for issue, There has been no material event after the date of Statement of
Financial Position that requires adjustments or disclosure in the Financial Statement.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Determination of Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy
The bank uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by

valuation.

Technique
Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 Valuation technique using observable inputs: quoted prices for similar assets
and liabilities in active markets or quoted prices.
Level 3 Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs: assets and
liabilities valued using valuation:techniques where one or more significant
31st December 2023 Level 1 - Level 3 Total
Rs. "~ Rs. Rs,
Financial Assets
Financial investments FVPL
Quoted investments - Unit Trust 3,552,53 - 3,552,533,227

Financial investments FYOCI

CRIB - 4,754,078 4,754,078
Fitch Rating - 625,000 625,000
Tatal Financial Assets - 5,379,078 3,557,912,305

Financial Liabilities

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities not carried at Fair Value
The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values of those financial

assets and liabilities which are not already recorded at fair value in the Financial Statements,

Assets and Liability of which Fair Value Approximates Carrying Value
For financial assets and liabilities that have a short term maturity, it is assumed that the carrying amounts
approximate their fair values such as placement with bank, other assets, due to customers and other liabilities.

This assumption is also applied to demand deposits and savings deposits which do not have a specific maturity.

Fixed Rate Financial Instruments
The fair value of fixed rate financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost are estimated by comparing

market inferest rates when they were first recognized with current market rates for similar financial instruments.
The estimated fair value of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted cash flows using prevailing
market interest rates for debts with similar credit risk and maturity. For quoted debt issued, the fair values are
determined based on quoted market prices.

Variable Rate Financial Instruments
Variable rate is a fair measure which reflects market movements. Hence the carrying value represents the fair

value of the variable rate instruments.
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2023 2022
7. Assets Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Rs Rs Rs Rs
Cash and Cash Equivalents 122,600,853 122,600,853 126,480,437 126,480,437
Placements with Banks 2,923,132,097 2,923,132,097 13,002,272,044 11,811,735,024
Loeans and receivables 38,725,208,636 37,781,193,588 39,267,237,754 38,907,219,312

371

Debt and Other Instruments
Financial Assets - FVPL
Financial Assets - FVOCI
Other assets

Total Financial Assets
Liabilities

Due to banks

Due to customers
Other borrowings

Other liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

Determination of Faire value hierarchy

Level 1
Inputs that are quoted marke
measures the fair valuc of
transaction costs.

Level 2

Inf)uts other than quoted prices included

Level 03

12,162,743,730
3,552,533,227

12,392,310,881
3,552,533,227

2,574,993 439

2,113,414,423

5,379,078 5,379,078 5,379,078 5,379,078
2,015,220,720 2,015,220,720 1,988,582,230 2,011,376,008
59,506,818,341 58,792,370,444 56,964,944,983 54,975,604,282
2,732,792 23,380,935 23,380,935
52,138,134,453 49,139,971,357 49,139,971,357
181,630,080 278,050,561 278,050,561

1,275,182,255

53,597,679,580

1,049,057,424

1,049,057,424

50,490,460,277

50,490,460,277

cos (unadjusted) i
rument using

vithin Level [ that are observable either directly or indirectly.

ive market for identical instruments. When available, the Bank
tive quoted prices or dealer price quotations, without any deduction for

This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data
and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation.

2023

Financial Assets
Treasury Bills and Bonds
Unit Trust

Loans and Advances
Total

2022

Treasury Bills and Bonds
Unit Trust

Loans and Advances
Total

Level 01 Level 02 Level 03 Total

12,392,310,881 - - 12,392.310,881
3,552,533,227 - - 3,552,533,227
- - 37,781,193,588 37,781,193,588
15,944,844,108 - 37,781,193,588 53,726,037,696
2,013,414,423 - - 2,113,414,423
- - 38,907,219,312 38,907,219,312
2,113,414,423 - 38,907,219,312 41,020,633,735
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38.

38.1

Risk Management

Bank has established formal risk management practices to manage its inherent risk such process
includes identification, measurement and monitoring subject to risk appetite and risk tolerance
limits of the bank. The Bank is mainly exposed to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk, Market Risk and
Operational Risk.

Risk Management Structure
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Bank's

risk management framework. In discharging its governance responsibility, it operates through two
key commiftees the Board Integrated. Risk Management Committee and the Board Audit
Committee, The Board and the BIRMC have delegated the risk management responsibility to the
following exccutive management committees in co-ordination of risk mafters for each of the

focused areas.
. Executive Integrated Risk Management Committee (EIRMC)

. Executive Credii Committee (ECC)
. Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO)

Board Integrated Risk Management
monitoring Bank’s risk matiagem
Directors.

Executive Integrated Risk Manag ient Committee

EIRMC is chaired by Genera néger/ CEO of the bank and committee is responsible for review
and monitoring of the risk exéosures of the bank and setting of the risk tolerance limits and
recommending of development and revision of the risk management policy of the bank, the
EIRMC 12 key managerial persons.

Credit Committee

Credit committee is chaired by GM/CEQ of the bank and committee is responsible develop and
periodical review of the credit policy, credit manual, monitoring and managing of the credit risk of

the bank. The committee comprises seven Key managerial persons,

Asset/Liability Management Committee (ALCO)

ALCO is chaired by GM/CEQ of the bank and the committee is responsible to manage and
monitoring of the interest rate risk of the bank, monitoring and managing of the assets and liability

of the Bank and monitoring and managing of the overall liquidity position of the bank.
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38.2

38.2.1.

Risk Management and reporting
Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that an obligor is either unwilling to perform on an obligation or
its ability to perform such obligation is impaired resulling in economic loss to the bank. This is the
primary category of risk with which the bank must deal, since the major share of its assets consists of
loans and advances.

The credit risk policy plays a central role in managing daily business activities. The Bank has
developed a policy which defines the principles encompassing client selection, due diligence, early
alert reporting, tolerable levels of concentration risk and portfolio monitoring in line with Bank's risk
appetite. The policy is reviewed at least annually and approved by the Board of Directors ensuring
consistency with the Bank's business strategy.

Consistent standards maintained in initial screenin wappraisal process, independent risk

me of the methods used for

review mechanism carried out by the risk rhai
identification of problem loans to safeguard th '

under Accounting Policies Note 2.4.12.
Measurement of ECL o :
Stage 1: 12 - Months ECL
For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and that are not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the
probability of default events occurring within the next 12 months is recognized. Bank determines 12
month ECL from customers whom are not significantly credit deteriorated (i.e. Less than 30 days past

due).

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired

For exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but is
not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting the remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is
recognized, In consistent with the policies of the bank, significant deterioration is measured through
the rebuttable presumption of 30 days past due other than the credit facilities categorized under Stage
3, in line with the requirements of the standard. Bank also have considered all restructured loans,
which are restructured up to two times, other than credit facilities/ exposures upgraded credit facilities
from a higher stage to a lower stage consider under stage 2 as per the guidance issued by the Central
Bank.
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Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - eredit impaired

Exposures are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred. For exposures that have become credit
impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized and interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount, Bank
determines credit facilities where contractual payments of a customer are more than 90 days pasi due
which are subject to the rebuttable presumption as stated in SLFRS 9 together with all NPL
classifications as per Ceniral Bank classification, All restructured loans which are restructured more
than twice and all rescheduled loans other than credit facilities/exposures upgraded credit facilities
from a higher stage to a lower stage and all credit facilities/customers classified as non-performing as
per CBSL Directions under stage 3.

PD estimation process

Probability of Default is the estimate of the likelihood .of default over a given time horizon. PD
nde RS 9 is largely based on the Days Past
the country at present. Accordingly,

estimation for loans and advances to other customer:
Due(DPD) of the customers which is common for most.Banks it
) as follows:-

exposures are categorized among S groups based on the DI
. Zero days past due
. 1-30 days past due
. 31-60 days past due
. 61-9C days past due
. Above 90 days past due

The exposure at default (E;
The exposure at default (EAD) represents t

ssing both the client’s ability to increase ifs exposure while

gross carrying amount of the financial instruments

subject to the impairment t lation, ad¢

approaching default and pote early repayments too. The Bank uses Credit Conversion Factors

(CCF) which explains the historicalutilization of defaulted facilities at the time of default to calculate

the EAD of revolving facilities in which customers have the ability to increase their exposure. For non-

revolving facilitics, already utilized amount plus any accrued interest over same is considered as EAD,

Loss given defanit (LGD)

Loss given default (LGD) is the magnitude of likely loss on exposure, and is expressed as a percentage
of exposure. These LGD rates take into account the expected EAD in comparison to the amount
expected to be recovered or realized from any collateral held.

Assessment of ECL: model under multiple economic scenarios of the geographic region ( EFA)
ECLs must reflect an unbiased and probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected
life of the financial instrument. Considering of the every possible macro economic variable and
seniors are not practicable hence the Bank used variable and senatios which are most likely to impact
on ECL of the assets impairment. To ensure completeness and accuracy, the Bank obtained
independent assurance from third party to validate the date used for EFA, Uncertainties in
macroeconomic environment is being continued as of end of the 2021 resulting resilient negative
outlook in the macro economic variable.Mangment overlay was used revised assumption of worst
case scenario from 20% to 60% as at 31.12.2023,
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383

Liquidity Risk and Funding Management

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the bank will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the bank might be unable
to meet its payment obligations when they fall due under both normal and stress
circumstances, To limit this risk, management has arranged diversified funding sources in
addition to ifs core deposit base, and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity in
mind and monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The bank has
developed internal conlrol processes and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This
incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high grade
collateral which could be used to secure additional funding il required.

Liquidity Ratios

Liquid assets mainly consists of cash, balances government securities. The

bank monitors the following liquidity ratios ndits prequirement.

Liquid Asset Ratio

Year - End
Maximum
Minimum 2937%  31.25%
Average 35.60% 33.15%
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STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended 31 December 2023

38.5 Capital Management

38.5.1 Minimum Regulatory capital
The minimum regulatory capital requirement Rs 5 Billion compiled by the Bank as at 01/01/2018 (as per the letter

dated on 12/07/2016 by CBSL). This has further been enhanced to Rs 7.5 Billion with effect from 31.12.2020 as
per the direction No 5 of 2017 dated on 26 October 2017 and subsequently which was extended until 31.12.2023 as
pet the Govemnor of Central Bank of direction number 04 of 2022. Accordingly, The Bank expects to complied with
the 7.5 Billion through the internally generated funds via expanding the business as per the provisions in the State
mortgage Act no 13 of 1975 in next two years.

38.5.2, Capital Adequacy Ratio and Regulatory Capital of the bank

All license specialised bank shall maintain, at all time, minimum Ti
of 8.5% and total capital ratio of 12.5% with effect from 01 Japuary
adequacy ratio of the bank are given below.

I__gapital including capital conservation buffer
Detail of the regulatory capital and capital

i. Capital Base

Rs.009 Rs.000
31,12.2023 31.12.2022

Capital Adequacy
Item

4,658,569 5,828,557
4,658,569 6,123,551
7,500,000 7,500,000
2,841,431 1,671,443
2,841,431 1,376,449

Common Equity Capital after adju
Total Tier 1 Capital .
Minimum regulatory capital to beé'fulfilled as at 3

Capital shortfall '
Total Tier I capital shortfall

Capital Adequacy ratio

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio 18.76% 18.81%
Total Capital Ratio 18.76% 19.76%
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STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended 31 December 2023

ii. Risk Adjusted on Balance Sheet Exposures

Principal
Amount of On- Risk Principal Risk
Balance Sheet Weighted Amount of Weighted
Items Assets On-Balance Assets
Amount Sheet Items Amount
2023 2022
Exposures
Claims on Central Bank of Sri Lanka 11,226,269 - 2,274,517 -
Claims on Public Sector Entities (PSEs) 3,534 3,534 23,276 23,276
Claims on Banks Exposures
Due From local Banks Less Than 03 Months 2,177,610 435,522
{AAA to BBB)
Due From local Banks More than 03 Months 736,146
{A+to BBB) 368,073
10,123,760 4,440,801
Ato BBB
Claims in Financial Institutions Regulated by
CBSL 77,625 i i
Claims on Other Financial Instituti 715,887 5,379 5,379
Retail Claims
Individual exposurcs 16,650,956 12,488,217 20,313,315 15,234,986
Claims Secured by Residential Property 8,878,131 3,107,346 10,088,337 3,530,918
Claims Secured by Residential Proper
Claims that qualify for regulatory capital
purposes - - i i
Non-Performing Assets (NPAs)
ecific Provisi ¢ equal to or

2{[])% ¢ Provisions are egual to or more than 851,285 1,851,285 1 466,643 1,466,643
Specific Provisions are less than 20% 151,410 227,114 9,383 14,074
Non-Performing Assets Secured by
Residential Property
Specific Provisions are more than 20% 29,444 14,722 64,523 32,262
Specific Provisions are less than 20% 1,551,509 1,551,509 1,354,550 1,354,550
Cash Items and Other Assets
Notes and Coins in own vault 62,941 - 67,856 -
Property Plant and Equipment 330,902 330,902 279,950 279,950
Other Assets/Exposures 1,666,766 1,666,766 1,076,476 1,076,476
Risk Weighted Amount for Credit Risk 49,096,404 22,631,289 50,061,721 28,262,910
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STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended 31 December 2023

38.6 Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due fo

changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices, The bank does

not possess any trading portfolios at present and hence the Bank’s portfolio is mainly none trading.

38.6.1. Market risk — none trading
Inferest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the

fair values of financial instruments. The bank’s policy is to monitor positions on a daily basis and hedging
strategies are used to ensure positions are maintained within the established limits.

Sensitivity of the income statements of the bank for the year ended 2023 in response to reasonable changes

in the inierest rates of the rate sensitive assets and liabilities of the bank are summerised below

As af 31 December 2023 Rs 000 2022 Rs 000
Rate Sensitive Assets - RSA 20,140,558 20,562,859
Rate Sensitive Liabilities RLA 4_6,8 O,QQI 45,441,813

RSA -RLA {(24,878,954)
Impact of inceme statements due to interest rate sh

As at 31 December = 2022 Rs 000

0.50% (60,108)
1% (119,555)
-0.50% 59,777
-1% 119,555
Prepayment Risk

Prepayment risk is the risl
repay or request repaym
fall.

38,7 Operational Risk s
Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When

controls fail to operate effectively, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or
regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss, The bank cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks,
but it endeavors to manage these risks through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to
potential risks. Controls include cffective segregation of duties, access, authorization and reconciliation
procedures, staff education and assessment processes, such as the use of internal audit.

39 The Events Occurring After the Balance Sheet Date
Central Bank of Sri Lanka issued circular no 05 of 2021 in May 2021 with a view of facilitating to meet the
challenges face by business & individuals due to COVID 19 pandemic third wave. It was further extended
on September 2021 as per circular no 08 of 2021, Accordingly bank already offered the concessions in
May 2021 and currently bank is in the process of assessing the requests send by eligible borrowers for the

extended relief measures,

40 Assets Pledged
No assets have been pledped as security for liability.

41 Related Party Transactions
State Mortgage and Investment Bank is a state controlled enterprise. In the normal course of business it
engages in transactions with other state controlled enterprises which are disclosed in line with paragraph
4(d) of Sri Lanka Accounting Standard No.30 Related Parties.
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STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended 31 December 2023

42 Directors’ Interest in Contracts and Proposed Contracts

As per the State Mortgage and Investment Bank law, No 13 of 1975, a Director who, or whose spouse or
dependent child is directly or indirectly interested in any business transacted or proposed to be transacted by the
Board shail disclose the nature of such interest discussed. The disclosure shall be recorded in the minutes of the
Board, and such Director shall not take part in any deliberation or decision of the Board with respected with that
business, and shail withdraw from such meeting while such deliberation is in progress or decision is being made.
As per the Act, No foan shall be granted by the bank to any Director or employee of the bank or to the spouse or a
dependent child of a Director or employee or to any company or firm in which a Director or employee has a
substantial interest: “Provided however that the bank may grant to its employees loans for the purchase of any
land for the construction of a dwelling house or for the purchase, construction, repair, renovation of or any
extension to, a dwelling house or for any other purpose prescribed by the rules made under this law. Qutstanding
balance of loans given to employees as per this paragraph is disclosed in note number 32 in the Financial
Statements. The Directors of SMIB were not directly or indirectly interested.

43  Value Added Statement
For the Year Ended 31 December

7,401,968,299

115,159,625

7,517,127,924
(5,462,981,407)

Interest Income
Other Income
Total Revenue
Interest Expenses

Cost of Services 60,950,304) {590,873,759)
Impairment Provision (4:4(),722,270) (365,747,028)
Total Distribution of Value Adde 70,959,907 1,097,525,730
For the Year Ended 31st December 2023 2022

Rs. Rs
To Employees
Salarics and other benefits 1,013,434,214.65 1,089,955,264
To Government
Corporate Tax (494,390,131.80) (290,803,108)
Depreciation 100,077,518.20 96,575,584
Retained Profit (548,161,694.22) 201,797,990
Total 70,959,907 1,097,525,730

207




Unaudited

STATE MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended 31 December 2023
44 Source of Utilization

For the Year Ended 31 December

Sources of Income

Loans and Advances

Government Securities & Other Investmen:
Fee and Commission Incorne

Other Income

Total
Utilization of Income

Employces
Salaries and other payment to staff

Suppliers
Interest paid
QOther Expenses

Government
Corporate Taxes

Retained Profit

Total

2023
Rs

5,601,079,422
3,721,303,675
96,293,245
182,291,473

9,600,967,815

1,013,434,215

500,967,815
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2022
Rs

4,710,774,972
2,691,193,328
91,724,320
23,435,305

7,517,127,924

1,089,955,264

5,462,981,407
053,196,371

(290,803,108)
201,797,990

7,517,127,924
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Fabreeiaiel L | s o | amis | oo
Income Statement

Interest Income 9,322 7,402 5,254 6,082 5,982 5,524 4,745 4,241 3,879 3,633
Interest Expenditure 8,728 5,463 2,951 3,960 3,051 3,577 3,102 2,425 2,057 2,214
et [nferest Income 504 1,939 2,302 2,122 2,030 1,947 1,643 1,815 1,822 1,419
Other Operating Income 279 115 172 i78 142 134 171 131 120 113
Total Operating Income 873 2,054 2,474 2,300 2,174 2,081 1,814 1,947 1,941 1,532
Non Interest Expenses 1,910 1,540 1,490 1,239 1,226 i,164 1,435 1,240 1,260 1,119
Net Profit before tax (1,042) (89) 405 572 500 480 3719 706 681 413
Taxation 494 291 (152))  (216) sy (235 200 270 271 140
Net Profit alier lax {548) 202 253 356 419 244 179 436 410 273
Assels

Investement Securities 4 - 25 21 19 I8 18 17 432 19
Loans and Advances 38,725 39,267 38,103 36,857 35,893 34,225 32,987 28 164 26,523 24,038
Other Assets 603 1,076 891 1,104 1,178 932 8,946 7,073 7,201 6,148
Propery,Plant and Equipment 172 78 36 52 56 64 71 94 T4 96
Total Assets 59,507 56,905 53,323 52,802 47,311 42,597 42,022 35,347 34,232 30,301
Fund Employed

Capital Contributed 890 890 890 890 890 §90 890 890 890
Reserves 5,019 5,585 5,394 4,067 4,028 3,373 3,128
Total Equity 5,909 6,475 6,284 4,957 4,918 4,263 4,018
Liabilitics

Deposits 52,138 45,140 45,738 33,620 28,845 27,836 24,146
Debentures - - 110 110 110 195
Other Liabilitics 1,460 1,350 1,301 3.336 1,474 2,022 1,942
Total Liabilitics 53,598 50,490 47,039 42,022 35,347 34,232 30,301
Ratio

Return on Average Assets-NPBT%(RO 0.98 2.03 211 i.44
Return on Average FundsEmployeda (1 3.62 9.50 9.90 6.87
Number of Employees(no.) 392.00 392.00 392.00 407.00
Net Profit per Employee (Rs. Mn) (.46 I.11 1.0% 0.67
Statutory Reserve Fund 246,64 | 231.36 203.05 19£.36
Advances to Deposits{ Times) 0.98 0.98 .95 1.60
Equity Assets Ratio(Times) 0.12 0.14 0.12 0.13
Total Assets per Rupee Contributed 4722 39.72 38.46 34.05
Effective deemed dividend Rate % 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00
Deemed Dividend Cover - - - - - - 1.91 2.52 2.44 3.57
Our Contributien to the Nation

Deemed Dividend Tax - - - - - (40.36) 93.27 173.35 167.86 76.42
Payments to Consolidated Fund - - - - - - 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
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